CPAW AGENDA ITEM
READINESS WORKSHEET

CPAW Meeting Date: August 4, 2016
Name of Committee/ Individual: Membership Committee

1. Agenda Item Name: Proposed Revised CPAW Working Agreement
2. Desired Outcome: Approval of revised CPAW Working Agreement.

3. Brief Summary: The Membership Committee met on Monday, July 18 to review
CPAW member attendance and proposed a revision to the CPAW Working Agreement.

4. Background: Member attendance at the monthly CPAW meeting has been holding
at 55% for the last eighteen months. The Membership Committee recommended
putting additional emphasis on CPAW members improving their attendance. Starting in
fiscal 2015-16 Contra Costa Behavioral Health Services staff began tracking excused
versus unexcused absences of CPAW members. In addition, it has been
recommended that the CPAW Working Agreement be amended to include:

Your presence and active participation at every CPAW meeting is vital, as you have
been appointed to represent a designated stakeholder body. Please contact staff
before the meeting if you are unable to attend. CPAW members who have more than
50% unexcused absences within the previous six months may be subject to having an
alternate person appointed to their seat.
5. Specific Recommendation:

e CPAW approve the above language be added to the CPAW Working Agreement.
6. Anticipated Time Needed on Agenda: 15 minutes
7. Who will report on this item? Kathi McLaughlin

8. Attachment: DRAFT Revised CPAW Working Agreement



Consolidated Planning Advisory Workgroup (CPAW)

Working Agreement

The counsel and advice of all participants in the CPAW process is highly valued in
planning and evaluating Mental Health Services Act funded programs and services. In
order for all voices to be expressed in a productive, safe and respectful environment,
the CPAW body has developed and adopted the following set of self-governance
agreements for all participants at all types of CPAW meetings:

1.
2.

2

Come prepared to discuss the published agenda items and handouts.

We are committed to starting and finishing on time. Please help us by arriving on
time, speaking only to the topic at hand, and coming back from breaks on time.
Turn your cell phone ringers off; take any calls outside.

Avoid providing any distractions, such as side bar conversations.

Wait to be recognized before speaking, and keep your comments brief.

Please identify to the group your perspective, affiliation or potential conflict of
interest if you are participating in discussions that lead to group positions or
recommendations.

When internal group decisions need to be made, such as CPAW or sub-
committee governance issues, members will attempt to reach consensus, or, if
necessary, decide by a simple majority. For a group position or recommendation
made through CPAW to Contra Costa Behavioral Health Services, participants
may be asked if they support, do not support, or do not wish to take a position.
The number of CPAW members and non-members in each response category
should be reported.

It is OK to disagree politely and respectfully, as different perspectives are
welcomed and encouraged.

Please refrain from criticizing in a negative manner a specific person or agency
during the meeting, or in group communications. Outside of the meeting please
speak to the staff supporting the meeting for assistance in having your concerns
heard and addressed through the appropriate channels.

10.An individual may be asked to leave should he/she behave in a- manner that

threatens the safety of our group members, or does not honor the terms of this
working agreement.

11.Your presence and active participation at every CPAW meeting is vital, as you

have been appointed to represent a designated stakeholder body. Please
contact staff before the meeting if you are unable to attend. CPAW members
who have more than 50% unexcused absences within the previous six months
may be subject to having an alternate person appointed to their seat.

As of: July 19, 2016



Mental Health Services Act

Community Program Planning
Process (CPPP)

Planning for the Fiscal Year 2017-20 MHSA
Three Year Program and Expenditure Plan



What is Required

WIC Section 5848(a): Each three year plan and update shall be
developed with local stakeholders...

9 CCR Section 3300: The County shall provide for a community
program planning process as the basis for developing the three year
plan and plan updates...

9 CCR Section 3200.270: Stakeholders means individuals or entities
with an interest in mental health services, including, but not limited
to individuals with serious mental illness and/or serious emotional
disturbance and/or their families; providers of mental health and/or
related services, such as physical health care and/or social services;
educators and/or representatives of education; representatives of
law enforcement; and any other organization that represents the
interests of individuals with serious mental illness and/or serious
emotional disturbance and/or their families.




What Does a CPPP Mean?

9 CCR Section 3200.070: The Community Program Planning
Process means the process used in partnership with stakeholders
to:

* |dentify community issues related to mental illness resulting
from lack of community services and supports, including any
issues identified during the implementation of MHSA

* Analyze the mental health needs in the community

* |dentify and re-evaluate priorities and strategies to meet
those mental health needs



What We Currently Have

For Fiscal Year 2016-17 the Board of Supervisors approved setting aside $43.1
million for over 80 programs and plan elements in the following five
components:

Community Services and Supports (CSS) — $31.6 million for children with

serious emotional disturbance and adults with serious mental illness
Prevention and Early Intervention (PEI) - S8 million for services to prevent

mental illness from becoming severe and debilitating
Innovation (INN) - $2 million for new or different patterns of service that

can be subsequently added into the system.
Workforce Education and Training (WET) - $650,000 to recruit, train and

retain CCBHS County employees, contract staff and volunteers who
contribute to mental health care for consumers and their families.

Capital Facilities/Information Technology (CF/TN) - $S850,000 toward

implementing an electronic mental health record system.



What CPPPs Have Done

2013 — Qualitative Needs Assessment accomplished to inform
the direction of the Three Year Plan.

2014 - Focus groups and community forums developed broad
themes with which to identify priority needs and suggested
strategies.

2015 — FEB 25 Community forum engaged stakeholders to re-
evaluate priorities and strategies, identify emerging needs,
and provide input on Assisted Outpatient Treatment

2016 — PEI providers hosted a series of stakeholder events to
engage underserved populations at risk for developing a
serious mental iliness.




Lessons Learned

Conduct events at times and places where people can and are able
to come; hold them at the West and East ends of the County.

Stakeholders and staff are very busy; if possible fit stakeholder
events into existing meeting schedules.

Utilize existing staff and stakeholders to put on the events; don’t
hire outsiders.

Smaller group discussions are best to engage people in input and
problem solving.

CPAW'’s monthly meeting structure has evolved into an effective
format for exchange of information.

Utilize events as a means for stakeholders to meet mental health
providers, and to recruit individuals to various stakeholder
committees.

Conduct a needs assessment that uses quantitative data.



Suggested CPPP Format

* Dates/Time: OCT 6, NOV 3, DEC 8/ 3-6 P.M. (in place of scheduled
CPAW meetings)

* Places: OCT — San Pablo Maple Hall
NOV — Pleasant Hill Community Center

DEC - Bay Point — Ambrose Center

 Agenda: similar to FEB 2015 CPPP at Centre Concord
— CCBHS/BOS Welcome
— Overview of MHSA and stakeholder process
— Introduction of stakeholder committees and what they are working on
— 4 breakout groups to provide input on emerging issues
— Wrap up and dot exercise to prioritize identified needs

— Opportunity for public comment, written input, dialogue with service
providers, CCBHS staff




Some Emerging Issues for
Consideration

CSS — Stakeholder input on the “No Place Like Home” legislation

PEl — How PEI providers can better provide outreach and engage
underserved populations and provide access and linkage to mental
health care.

INN - Stakeholder input on how to turn new Innovative Project
concepts into approved proposals

WET — Discuss workforce needs for possible funding, such as better
supporting consumers and family members as volunteers to assist
with system navigation and care provision, addressing psychiatry
shortage

CF/TN - Completion of electronic mental health records project;

Finance — Long term strategy for utilization of unspent MHSA funds
from previous years

Other emerging issues?




Timeline for Completion of CPPP

CPAW input to DRAFT CPPP Plan AUG
Dates, locations, agendas finalized, communicated

to stakeholders SEP
CPPP events conducted OCT- NOV - DEC
DRAFT Plan developed, shared with CPAW/MHC for input FEB
30 Public Comment period, Public Hearing MAR

Draft Plan addresses substantive recommendations
for revisions APR

Board of Supervisors reviews and approves the final
MHSA Three Year Plan for FY 17-20 MAY



Planning Issues for Discussion

* |[nput on suggested format for the community
program planning process for the October
through December time frame?

* What emerging issues would be best to obtain
stakeholder input?

* How do we ensure our communities hear
about and have the opportunity to come and
participate in the community program
process?






Mental Health Services Act (MHSA)

Program and Fiscal Review

Dates of On-site Review: April 6, 7, 8, 12, 2016
Date of Exit Meeting: July 22, 2016
Review Team: Stephanie Chenard

Warren Hayes
Michelle Rodriguez-Ziemer

Name of Program: Recovery Innovations (“RI”)— Contra Costa Wellness Cities

Program Description. Founded by Eugene Johnson in 1990 as META
Services, an Arizona non-profit corporation, Recovery Innovations developed and
provided a range of traditional mental health and substance abuse services for
adults with long term mental health and addiction challenges. In 1999, Recovery
Innovations began pioneering an innovative initiative: the creation of the new
discipline of Peer Support Specialist. Now, 13 years later, this experience has
transformed the Recovery Innovations workforce to one in which Peer Support
Specialists and professionals work together on integrated teams to deliver
recovery-based services. The Recovery Innovations experiences had a global
impact on the mental health field serving as a demonstration that recovery from
mental illness and/or addiction is possible. Based on this transformation
experience, Recovery Innovations operates recovery-based mental health
services in 21 communities in five states and New Zealand and has provided
recovery training and transformation consultation in 27 states and five countries
abroad.

Recovery Innovations provides wellness and recovery centers situated in West,
Central and East Contra Costa County. Wellness and Recovery Centers are
made up of individuals embarking on or expanding their recovery journey. Staff of
well-trained peers who have experienced their own recovery success share what
they have learned and walk alongside each person. The clients of Wellness and
Recovery Centers learn to identify personal strengths and develop personalized
wellness plans that incorporate their hopes and dreams for the future. Each
participant partners with a Recovery Coach who understands their challenges
and stands alongside them ready to offer support. These centers offer peer-led
recovery-oriented, rehabilitation and self-help groups, which teach self-



VI.

management and coping skills. The centers offer wellness recovery action plan
(WRAP) groups, physical health and nutrition education, advocacy services and
training, arts and crafts, and support groups.

Purpose of Review. Contra Costa Behavioral Health Services is
committed to evaluating the effective use of funds provided by the Mental Health
Services Act. Toward this end a comprehensive program and fiscal review was
conducted of the above program. The results of this review are contained herein,
and will assist in a) improving the services and supports that are provided, b)
more efficiently support the County’s MHSA Three Year Program and
Expenditure Plan, and c) ensure compliance with statute, regulations and policy.
In the spirit of continually working toward better services we most appreciate this
opportunity to collaborate together with the staff and clients participating in this
program in order to review past and current efforts, and plan for the future.

Summary of Findings.

Topic Met Notes
Standard
1. Deliver services according to the Yes Services promote recovery,
values of the MHSA wellness, self-sufficiency, and
resiliency.
2. Serve the agreed upon target Yes Consumers (“Citizens”) meet
population. target population.
3. Provide the services for which Yes All MHSA funds directly
funding was allocated. support approved
programming.
4. Meet the needs of the Yes Program is consistent with
community and/or population. community planning process
and strategies.
5. Serve the number of individuals Yes Target service numbers are
that have been agreed upon. reached.
6. Achieve the outcomes that have | Partially | Currently relevant measures of
been agreed upon. met success are met; however,
consistent metrics should be
used.
7. Quality Assurance Yes A review of files and client

interviews attest to high
standards of care.




VII.

8. Ensure protection of Yes The program is HIPAA
confidentiality of protected compliant.
health information.

9. Staffing sufficient for the Yes Staffing level supports
program targeted service numbers.
10. Annual independent fiscal audit Yes No audit findings were noted.

performed.
11.Fiscal resources sufficient to Yes Resources appear sufficient.
deliver and sustain the services
12.Oversight sufficient to comply Yes Experienced staff implements
with generally accepted sound check and balance
accounting principles system.
13.Documentation sufficient to Yes Uses established software
support invoices program with appropriate
supporting documentation
protocol.
14.Documentation sufficient to Yes Method of accounting for
support allowable expenditures personnel time and operating
costs appear to be supported.
15. Documentation sufficient to Yes No billings noted for previous
support expenditures invoiced in fiscal year expenses.
appropriate fiscal year
16. Administrative costs sufficiently Yes Indirect charged at 15%.
justified and appropriate to the
total cost of the program
17.Insurance policies sufficient to Yes Policies are current and
comply with contract appropriate.
18. Effective communication Yes Regular contact between

between contract manager and
contractor

manager and contractor.

Review Results.

The review covered the following areas:

. Deliver services according to the values of the Mental Health Services Act

(California Code of Regulations Section 3320 — MHSA General Standards).
Does the program collaborate with the community, provide an integrated service
experience, promote wellness, recovery and resilience, be culturally competent,

and be client and family driven.




Method. Consumer, family member and service provider interviews and

consumer Surveys.

Discussion. As part of the site visits for all three Wellness Cities, approximately
45-50 consumers were interviewed, and additional input was obtained by 45
consumers who completed a written survey prior to the site visits.

Survey Results

Questions

Responses: n=44

Please indicate how strongly you
agree or disagree with the
following statements regarding
persons who work with you:

Strongly | Agree | Disagree | Strongly | | don't
Agree Disagree | know
4 3 2 1 0

1.

Help me improve my health and
wellness.

Average score: 3.22 (n=37)

2.

Allow me to decide what my own
strengths and needs

Average score: 3.10 (n=40)

3.

Work with me to determine the
services that are most helpful

Average score: 2.93 (n=41)

Provide services that are sensitive
to my cultural background.

Average score: 3.10 (n=36)

Provide services that are in my
preferred language

Average score: 3.43 (n=42)

Help me in getting needed health,
employment, education and other
benefits and services.

Average score: 3.07 (n=42)

. Are open to my opinions as to

how services should be provided

Average score: 3.38 (n=37)

What does this program do well?

e Gives me a comfortable place to come, a
safe environment.

¢ Encourages participation

e Put my own ideas into my future narrow
down my choices which enable me to
concentrate and focus going inside of my
present life.




9. What does this program need to
improve upon?

More outings

Maintaining a solid approach selecting a new
but changing focus about choice and ideas
concerning lifestyle and involvement into
mainstream personal responsibility
Different Subjects

How they talk to people, when we make
them upset when doing things that make
them feel like yelling or talking down without
knowledge

Information

10.What needed services and
supports are missing?

Maybe group counseling, small group
sessions, more variety

Anger classes, fresh air walking

Patience

Job help

More one to one exchanges between
citizens to provide more social skills practice.
Voices (group)

weekend services

11.How important is this program in
helping you improve your health
and wellness, live a self-directed
life, and reach your full potential?

Very Important | Somewhat | Not
Important Important Important
4 3 2 1

Average score: 3.37 (n=41)

12. Any additional comments?

Rl is a good program for all aspects of our
lives and personal life.

Your classes are interesting and | think you
should keep the good work. | love the
positive atmosphere

Be a place where we can learn to be
independent

| really enjoy this program. It's fun to come
here. | don't know where | would be if | didn’t
have RI for help.

Consumer Interview

The consumer interviews were conducted at all three “Wellness Cities” and were
attended by approximately 40-45 consumers of mixed genders, ethnicities, and
ages, all of whom engage in various levels of the services that Recovery
Innovations provides. The individuals’ experience with these Wellness Cities




ranged from as few as 2 weeks up to 2-1/2 years. (Several were clients of
MHCC when Recovery Innovations took over and renovated the programs for the
locations.) Consumers (referred to as “Citizens” in the program) were referred to
the Recovery Innovations Wellness Cities through a variety of sources, including:
Rubicon, Hume, family members, the County Adult Mental Health Clinics, Mental
Health Community Concerns, community events, individual therapists or doctors,
case workers, and some by friends.

Overall, the interview participants were very appreciative of the services provided

by Recovery Innovations and most reported that RI staff are very responsive to

their needs. During the interviews, things that Citizens specifically identified as

positives of the program were:

e The educational programs focused on recovery and moving forward,

e A variety of services focused on recovery and independent living;

e Staff that are supportive and passionate;

e A place where they felt secure and safe;

e Being able to develop friends and a social support network;

e The program finding a balance between working on recovery (classes) and
fun activities;

e Feeling like they can make a positive contribution, and “being heard”, through
Citizen-focused forums.

These positives speak squarely to the MHSA values. However, there were also

some areas identified by the Citizens for improvement. Some of these issues

were:

e Small group sessions (e.g., support groups, women’s groups, men’s groups,
etc.);

e Access to a mental health clinician onsite;

¢ More information, connections, and warm referrals to county services, such
as housing;

e Additional afternoon or weekend programing;

e Wider variety in class offerings (suggestions included more focus on
symptoms, or physical wellness — i.e., yoga, meditation, etc.);

e Increase the frequency of outings and activities that include all three cities

As the population of these cities grows and evolves, there is opportunity for
Recovery Innovations to expand their offerings, as well as revive current
schedules.



Staff Interview:

During the three site visits, eight staff members were interviewed: Five Recovery
Coaches, and three Team Leads. Staff shared that each of them have had some
kind of personal background with mental illness and recovery in their lives —
either personally, or with family members. This fits with the program’s peer
model. They further reported that they share teaching/facilitating responsibilities
for the daily classes, as well as the one-to-one coaching sessions with the
consumers. The schedule of classes and activities is determined on a monthly
basis by the Team Lead for each Wellness City and is largely based on
consumer (Citizen) feedback that arises from the weekly Citizen-led “Town Hall”
meetings. The classes are pulled from curriculum that has been developed by
Recovery Innovations’ corporate headquarters. The staff is also responsible for
completing journal notes for every consumer who completes a class on a daily
basis. These notes are placed in each consumer’s individual file and can be
referred to during one-on-one coaching and goal setting sessions.

While the staff are adept at helping guide their consumers through services and
other referrals, a particular area that was voiced in all three locations was a
desire for more and stronger networking connections with other providers, such
as housing, employment, medication support, etc. Staff shared that a part of
additional and better partnering with other providers would also include
expansion of some of the practices that are currently in use by RI, such as
WRAP programs.

Results. Recovery Innovations staff appear to implement services according to
the values of the Mental Health Services Act.

. Serve the agreed upon target population. For Community Services and
Supports, does the program serve adults with a serious mental illness or children
or youth with a serious emotional disturbance. Does the program serve the
agreed upon target population (such as age group, underserved community).
Method. Compare the program description and/or service work plan with a
random sampling of client charts or case files.

Discussion. The Wellness Cities work with accepting referrals from the three
County Adult Mental Health Clinics and other providers, but they also have an
inclusive open-door policy, welcoming the greater Contra Costa County
community.

Results. The program serves the agreed upon population.



3. Provide the services for which funding was allocated. Does the program
provide the number and type of services that have been agreed upon.

Method. Compare the service work plan or program service goals with regular

reports and match with case file reviews and client/family member and service

provider interviews.

Discussion. The Service Work Plan for FY 2015-2016 states that the services

to be provided are as follows:

e Peer and Family Support

e Personal Recovery Planning using the seven steps of Recovery Coaching

e Workshops, Education Classes and Community-Based Activities using the 9
Dimensions of Wellness; physical, emotional, intellectual, social, spiritual,
occupational, home/community living, financial, recreation/leisure

e Community Outreach and Collaboration

e Assist participants to coordinate medical, mental health, medication and other
community services

¢ Wellness Recovery Action Plan (WRAP) classes

e Family Education and Support Programs

e Breakfast/Lunch meals during weekdays for participants

e Through our mission and pathways, Recovery Innovations provides a range
of community-based mental health services to adult mental health participants
in Contra Costa County.

e Recovery Innovations to further enhance our services by providing
transportation to Community-Based Activities using the 9 Dimensions of
Wellness; physical, emotional, intellectual, social, spiritual, occupational,
home/community living, financial, recreation/leisure.

Feedback from staff and consumers indicate that the type of services provided
were consistent with the services stipulated in the service agreement.

Results. Recovery Innovations provides a variety of services aimed at helping
clients with severe mental illness work towards recovery and wellness. This is
demonstrated in their daily schedule, as well as in their participation in larger
periodic community events. The services are accurately reflected in the
delineated list from the Service Work Plan. MHSA funds directed to the agency
cover expenditures associated with these services in the Recovery Innovations’
Wellness Cities.



4. Meet the needs of the community and/or population. Is the program meeting
the needs of the population/community for which it was designed. Has the
program been authorized by the Board of Supervisors as a result of a community
program planning process. Is the program consistent with the MHSA Three Year
Program and Expenditure Plan.

Method. Research the authorization and inception of the program for adherence
to the Community Program Planning Process. Match the service work plan or
program description with the Three Year Plan. Compare with consumer/family
member and service provider interviews. Review client surveys.

Discussion. This contract has been authorized by the Board of Supervisors
since 2013 and is consistent with the current MHSA Three-Year Program and
Expenditure Plan in conducting support services for adults with serious mental
illness in West, Central, and East Contra Costa County. This program provides
consumers assistance with meaningful activity, a need that has been identified
as a priority through community stakeholder engagement. Consumer interviews
and surveys indicate that Recovery Innovations is meeting their needs.

Results. Recovery Innovations appears to be meeting the needs of the
population for which it was designed.

5. Serve the number of individuals that have been agreed upon. Has the
program been serving the number of individuals specified in the program
description/service work plan, and how has the number served been trending the
last three years.

Method. Match program description/service work plan with history of monthly
reports and verify with supporting documentation, such as logs, sign-in sheets
and case files.

Discussion. Recovery Innovations provides detailed reports on the various
service activities they provide, as well as the number of participants. The
program has been successful in increasing the total number of persons served
within the community as their target for unduplicated participants increased from
299 to 451 between fiscal year 2013-14 and fiscal year 2014-15. In the 2+ years
that the program has Recovery Innovations has updated its number of
“unduplicated” to further include “active” participants. “Unduplicated” means a
person has enrolled and participated for at least 1 day. “Active” reports out on
persons who have participated in the past 90 days. For the 2014-15 Fiscal Year
year-end report, Recovery Innovations had 217 “Active” participants

Results. The program serves the number of people that have been agreed
upon, and consistently exceed the minimum amount. Going forward, it is
recommend that reporting on persons served should be clearly delineated



between those who are served once, versus those who receive ongoing direct
services to capture more meaningful outcomes.

. Achieve the outcomes that have been agreed upon. Is the program meeting
the agreed upon outcome goals, and how has the outcomes been trending.
Method. Match outcomes reported for the last three years with outcomes
projected in the program description/service work plan, and verify validity of
outcome with supporting documentation, such as case files or charts. Outcome
domains include, as appropriate, incidence of restriction, incidence of psychiatric
crisis, meaningful activity, psychiatric symptoms, consumer satisfaction/quality of
life, and cost effectiveness. Analyze the level of success by the context, as
appropriate, of pre- and post-intervention, control versus experimental group,
year-to-year difference, comparison with similar programs, or measurement to a
generally accepted standard.

Discussion. Outcome goals are reported in terms of the percentage of
consumers who 1) have a recovery partnership and are working with a Recovery
Coach on their goals, and 2) complete the four core classes in the Recovery
Innovations curriculum. The outcomes for financial years 2013/14, and 2014/15
have been reported as follows:

For FY 2013/14, the organization launched this program with the county and had
only 6 months to report (January- June, 2014). As such, they reported out that
they had a total of 299 participants, and then the 4 core classes: 216 attended
WRAP, 138 attended WELL, 136 attended Nine Dimensions of Wellness, 105
attended in Facing up to Health.

For FY 2014/15, the reporting was a little more refined. RI reported not only on
unduplicated consumers, but honed in to report on 217 active, regular
participants. This time, however, the 4 core classes were reported in terms of
completion: 34% of citizens who attend one WRAP class complete the class,
37% completed WELL, 34% completed Facing Up to Health, and 34% completed
Nine Dimensions of Wellness (“My Personal Wellness Plan”). Addtionally,83% of
all Wellness City Citizens have a recovery partnership and are working with a
Recovery Coach — 3% over their outcome goal of 80%

Results. The program strives to meet the outcomes that have been agreed
upon. However, as the goals are currently written, Recovery Innovations is not
reporting out on all goals consistently. A review of the client files has shown a
lack of consistency in journal notes written by Recovery Coaches. Nonetheless,
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Recovery Innovations is currently in its third year of operations with the Contra
Costa County Wellness Cities and is learning more about its goals and collecting
and reporting data on the outcomes.

The Service Work Plan for the 2015-16 Financial Year references Recovery
Journey software. The work plan indicates that the following reports are available
for evaluation:

e Number of sessions per person receiving services

e Number of sessions delivered per provider

e Percentages of services delivered in different locations

e Average time spent per session, per person or per provider

e Aggregate time spent receiving peer support per person

Looking forward, it is recommended that RI engage with these tools to further
revise and assess success measures. It is further recommended that RI provide
training to staff on how to write journal notes effectively to be more goal focused.

. Quality Assurance. How does the program assure quality of service provision.
Method. Review and report on results of participation in County’s utilization
review, quality management incidence reporting, and other appropriate means of
quality of service review.

Discussion. Contra Costa County Behavioral Health Administration did not
receive any grievances towards the program. The program has an internal
grievance process and welcomes consumer feedback through regular
administration of surveys to program participants.

Results. The program has internal processes in place to be responsive to
participant needs and continuously improve quality of services. It also has a
process for participants to give feedback, as well as well-documented and posted
grievance processes for program participants in order to comply with quality
assurance requirements.

Ensure protection of confidentiality of protected health information. What
protocols are in place to comply with the Health Insurance Portability and
Accountability Assurance (HIPAA) Act, and how well does staff comply with the
protocol.

Method. Match the HIPAA Business Associate service contract attachment with
the observed implementation of the program’s implementation of a protocol for
safeguarding protected patient health information.
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Discussion. The program does not provide direct clinical services and thus
does not keep clinical documentation onsite. The program does, however, keep
files on individual clients for journal notes on class participation. The larger
Recovery Innovations agency has written policies and provides staff training on
HIPAA requirements and safeguarding of patient information upon hire. Client
charts are kept in locked file cabinets, behind a locked door and comply with
HIPAA standards. Program participants are informed about their privacy rights
and rules of confidentiality.

Results. Recovery Innovations maintains necessary privacy policies and
procedures.

9. Staffing sufficient for the program. Is there sufficient dedicated staff to deliver
the services, evaluate the program for sufficiency of outcomes and continuous
quality improvement, and provide sufficient administrative support.

Method. Match history of program response with organization chart, staff
interviews and duty statements.

Discussion. Recovery Innovations has an organizational structure of filled
positions indicating a sufficient number and type of staff to support their
operations. The Recovery Services Administrator recently left, and the
organization just filled the vacant position. The experience level of the Recovery
Coaches and Team Leads varied from years of experience in mental health to
this being their first position in a peer-support recovery role. Recovery
Innovations has a robust internal training program, and is still aiming to identify
and address a variety of mental health issues in their training process.
Results. Sufficient staffing has been in place to serve the number of clients
outlined in the most recent Service Work Plans.

10.Annual independent fiscal audit. Did the organization have an annual
independent fiscal audit performed and did the independent auditors issue any
findings.
Method. Obtain and review audited financial statements. If applicable, discuss
any findings or concerns identified by auditors with fiscal manager.
Discussion. RI was incorporated in the state of Arizona as a non-profit
organization in 2006, and offers a range of services in four primary areas; Crisis,
Health, Recovery and Consulting. The Contra Costa Wellness Cities are part of
RI's Recovery area, and receives all administrative support from its home office
in Arizona. This $46 million organization operates in five states, and in New
Zealand.
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11.

12.

13.

Results. Annual independent fiscal audits for Recovery Innovations, Inc. (RI) for
the last two years were provided and reviewed. No significant or material
findings were noted in the auditor’s report.

Fiscal resources sufficient to deliver and sustain the services. Does
organization have diversified revenue sources, adequate cash flow, sufficient
coverage of liabilities, and qualified fiscal management to sustain program.
Method. Review audited financial statements and Board of Directors meeting
minutes. Interview fiscal manager of program.

Discussion. This program’s recent contract with CCBHS appears to provide a
full cost recovery for expenses incurred. In addition, RI has a $1,000,000
revolving line of credit, and a $3 million line of credit to help finance its working
capital needs. Neither line of credit was utilized in fiscal year 2015.

Results. Fiscal resources are sufficient to deliver and sustain services.

Oversight sufficient to comply with generally accepted accounting
principles. Does organization have appropriate qualified staff and internal
controls to assure compliance with generally accepted accounting principles.
Method. Interview with fiscal manager.

Discussion. The Accounting Manager has over seven years’ experience
working in this capacity for RI, and appears fully qualified. RI has a practice of
communicating fiscal best practices on a regular basis to program managers in
order to maintain quality oversight. RI maintains separate cost centers for each
contract, and utilizes the ACCPAC software accounting program to track costs
incurred and paid.

Results. The RI Accounting Manager and Western Regional Director were
interviewed. Sufficient oversight exists to enable compliance with generally
accepted accounting principles.

Documentation sufficient to support invoices. Do the organization’s financial
reports support monthly invoices charged to the program and ensure no
duplicate billing.

Method. Reconcile financial system with monthly invoices. Interview fiscal
manager of program.

Discussion. RI provided documents supporting their invoices. Receipts and
monthly timekeeping documentation is generated and reviewed locally, and
submitted to the home office and processed by the accounting section, who
prepares and submits the monthly invoice to CCBHS.

13



Results. RI’s fiscal reporting system, to include monthly invoices and supporting
documentation, was reviewed. The methodology and financial documentation
appears sufficient to support the invoices, with no duplicate billing.

14.Documentation sufficient to support allowable expenditures. Does
organization have sufficient supporting documentation (payroll records and
timecards, receipts, allocation bases/statistics) to support program personnel and
operating expenditures charged to the program.
Method. Match random sample of one month of supporting documentation for
each fiscal year (up to three years) for identification of personnel costs and
operating expenditures invoiced to the county.
Discussion. Rl has had a cost based contract with the county for three years,
and has been billing for actual allowable costs incurred and paid.
Results. Method of accounting for personnel time and operating costs appear to
be supported.

15.Documentation sufficient to support expenditures invoiced in appropriate
fiscal year. Do organization’s financial system year end closing entries support
expenditures invoiced in appropriate fiscal year (i.e., fiscal year in which
expenditures were incurred regardless of when cash flows).
Method. Reconcile year end closing entries in financial system with invoices.
Interview fiscal manager of program.
Discussion. A review of the county’s MHSA monthly financial reports indicated
no billing by this agency for expenses incurred and paid in a previous fiscal year.
Results. Documentation appears sufficient to support expenditures invoiced in
the appropriate fiscal year.

16.Administrative costs sufficiently justified and appropriate to the total cost
of the program. Is the organization’s allocation of administrative/indirect costs
to the program commensurate with the benefit received by the program.
Method. Review methodology and statistics used to allocate
administrative/indirect costs. Interview fiscal manager of program.
Discussion. This line item appears to be commensurate with the benefit
received by the program.
Results. RI budgets and bills CCBHS at 15% Indirect Costs, which is at industry
standard.
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VIIIL.

17.Insurance policies sufficient to comply with contract. Does the organization

have insurance policies in effect that are consistent with the requirements of the
contract.

Method. Review insurance policies.

Discussion. The program provided general liability insurance policies that were
in effect at the time of the site visit.

Results. The program complies with the contract insurance requirements.

18.Effective communication between contract manager and contractor. Do

both the contract manager and contractor staff communicate routinely and clearly
regarding program activities, and any program or fiscal issues as they arise.
Method. Interview contract manager and contractor staff.

Discussion. Program staff and county have been in regular communication and
as part of the program review process, have begun initial conversations
regarding contract renewal with program improvements to better serve the
community.

Results. The program has historically had good communication with the contract
manager and is receptive to feedback and willing to address concerns that may
arise.

Summary of Results.

Recovery Innovations is an innovative organization that provides a full spectrum
of recovery and wellness services through their Wellness Cites in West, Central,
and East County. RI staff engages their consumers (“Citizens”) with curriculum
that has been developed to assist Citizens toward achieving their own recovery.
The program adheres to the principles of the MHSA by providing mental health
services that are focused on recovery, self-reliance, and resiliency. Moreover,
the program provides consumers assistance with meaningful activity, a need that
has been identified as a priority through community stakeholder engagement.
Services are provided in community based settings and are driven by the needs
of the community that Recovery Innovations serves. Rl is connected to the
County’s mental health system and other system partners such as health
services, and other mental health service providers. Program participants
overwhelmingly endorse the positive impact. This is a relatively new cost-based
contract with CCBHS that appears to provide a full cost recovery for expenses
incurred, and is operating with sound fiscal and accounting practices.

Issues for attention pertain primarily to refining outcomes and how they track and
capture that information.
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IX.  Findings for Further Attention.

e Several consumers have expressed a desire for a mental health clinician to
be made available to them onsite. While Recovery Innovations is a peer
model, it is recommended that RI provide more access to a clinician who can
help bridge the gap between clinical treatment and the journey to recovery.

e A review of the client files has shown a lack of consistency in journal notes
written by Recovery Coaches. Itis recommended that Recovery Innovations
provide training to staff on how to write journal notes effectively, to be more
goal focused.

e Itis recommended that Recovery Innovations implement and utilize the
database software referred to in the 15/16 Work Plan (*“Recovery Journey”).
This will help in capturing the journal notes, and be able to report out more
meaningfully on consumer success as well as program efficacy.

e It recommended that Recovery Innovations revise its outcome deliverables to
focus more on determining success in consumer progress in the classes, and
on improving mental health outcomes.

X. Next Review Date. April 2019

Xl.  Appendices.

Appendix A — Program Response to Report
Appendix B — Program Description/Service Work Plan
Appendix C — Service Provider Budget

Appendix D — Yearly External Fiscal Audit

Appendix E — Organization Chart

XIl.  Working Documents that Support Findings.
Consumer Listing

Consumer, Family Member Surveys

Consumer, Family Member, Provider Interviews

County MHSA Monthly Financial Report
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Progress Reports, Outcomes

Monthly Invoices with Supporting Documentation
Indirect Cost Allocation Methodology/Plan

Board of Directors’ Meeting Minutes

Insurance Policies

MHSA Three Year Plan and Update(s)
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APPENDIX A

Program Response to Report

Mental Health Services Act Program and Fiscal Review Response

Produced by RI International — Contra Costa County Wellness Cities

(Antioch, Concord, San Pablo)

1. Section VII — Review Results 1. Staff Interviews

Eight peer support staff members were interviewed by a county representative at the time of

this review. Staff identified opportunities for RI as well as general service needs in the

community for this population.

a. While RI staff maintains strong relationships with community partners to offer

interconnected service, opportunities for growth were identified.

Medication Education — All three Wellness Cities have made inquiries with
local pharmacies with the intention of recruiting a volunteer pharmacist or
technician to be present in each site and answer medication related questions
quarterly. Thus Far, San Pablo has been successful in receiving that support.
The Antioch and Concord Leads are still working to obtain assistance in this

area.

ii. At the time of their interviews staff identified an interest in obtaining an RN

or Psychologist on site to support all three wellness cities. A RFP was
requested in 2015 by former RSA Hillary Bowers and it was denied by the
county Mental and Behavioral Health Division. Current RSA, April Langro
will seek a volunteer Psych Tech or LCSW and if a partnership of this nature
cannot be established, RI International staff will continue to work with the
HUME Center and other entities to link citizens to the psychiatric support
they might be seeking.

Regarding RI International’s interest to expand WRAP services, we are
actively working with our community partners to encourage participation and

use of the Mary Ellen Copeland’s WRAP facilitation and train the trainer
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services that we provide. April Langro and Dr. Anton Bland at PES have
connected to establish whether or not a plan can be developed to train PES
staff members in Mary Ellen Copeland’s WRAP or to provide PES with
trained WRAP facilitators. At the time of this review Warren Hayes identified
other entities like Hope House and Miller Wellness Center that are also
interested in partnering with RI for WRAP related training. April Langro will
connect with these programs and develop an opportunity to train all interested
partners alongside one another at one time.

Also in the interest of expanding our WRAP services, April Langro has
written an Innovative Grant Concept Proposal to connect the TAY and
LGBTQ populations with RI’s Wellness City curriculum which would
include WRAP, WELL, Facing up to Health and 9 Dimensions of Wellness.
Whether or not this grant is awarded to RI, April Langro will include the
Rainbow Community Center and CCTAY program in the county wide
WRAP training opportunity.

2. Section VII — Review Results — 5. Serving the number of individuals that have been agreed
upon.
The county representative performing the review identified that RI serves the number of
people that have been agreed upon. However, an opportunity to track and report on
meaningful outcomes was identified.

a. While RI International meets the expectations and retains accurate documentation of
the number of individuals being served, the RSA and SSC of RI are introducing new
line items in RI’s tracking tools to reflect the meaningful activities and outcomes. On
August 1* the Recovery Coaches will begin tracking the following meaningful
activities and outcomes.

i. Number of people who participate in the following:
1. SPIRIT
2. RI’s community inclusion events
3. RI’s volunteer programs
4. Pre-employment skill development or vocational training
5

R1I’s Citizen Contributor or Engagement Specialist roles



ii. Number of people who obtained a Primary Care Physician and/or Psychiatrist

iii. Number of people who applied and/or interviewed for a job

iv. Number of people who committed to a healthy life style change:

1.
2.
3.
4.

Stopped smoking
Altered their diet
Started exercising

Joined a support group

v. Number of people who celebrated the following successes:

1.

2
3.
4

Graduated school

Obtained outside employment

Began taking college courses or received a certificate

Completed one or more of RI’s 4 CORE courses:

WRAP, WELL, 9 Dimensions of Wellness and Facing Up to Health

b. RI will begin to differentiate the number of potential citizens who were served once

to meet a need in a time of crisis between the numbers of potential citizens who

visited once. Both of these will be tracked and compared to the number of citizens

who receive services daily at all three Wellness Cities: Antioch, Concord and San

Pablo.

3. Section VII — Review Results — 6. Achieve the outcomes that have been agreed upon.

At the moment of RI’s review, it was suggested by the county that a software program be

utilized by RI to upload the individual and group notes that Recovery Coaches complete for

each citizen following their participation. More training in note taking was recommended

a. Rl International in Contra Costa County purchased the software “Netsmart.”

Recovery Coaches will be retrained in writing individual and group notes that reflect

the citizen’s goals and/or areas in which they are currently seeking support for their

overall wellness which may overshadow their goals in that moment. April Langro

will provide the additional training and closely monitor the progress of the Recovery

Coaches to improve their skills while anticipating the implementation of Netsmart.

Completed by: April Langro - RI International — Recovery Services Administrator



APPENDIX B

Program Description and Service Work Plan

Recovery Innovations
Point of Contact: April Langro, Recovery Services Administrator
Contact Information: 2975 Treat Blvd., Suite C8, Concord, CA 94518, (925)-363—
7290, April.Langro@riinternational.com

1. General Description of the Organization
Founded by Eugene Johnson in 1990 as META Services, an Arizona non-profit
corporation, Recovery Innovations developed and provided a range of traditional
mental health and substance abuse services for adults with long term mental health
and addiction challenges. In 1999, Recovery Innovations began pioneering an
innovative initiative: the creation of the new discipline of Peer Support Specialist.
Now, 13 years later, this experience has transformed the Recovery Innovations
workforce to one in which Peer Support Specialists and professionals work together
on integrated teams to deliver recovery-based services. The Recovery Innovations
experiences had a global impact on the mental health field serving as a
demonstration that recovery from mental illness and/or addiction is possible. Based
on this transformation experience, Recovery Innovations operates recovery-based
mental health services in 21 communities in five states and New Zealand and has
provided recovery training and transformation consultation in 27 states and five
countries abroad.

2. Program: Recovery Innovations Wellness and Recovery Centers - CSS
Recovery Innovations provides wellness and recovery centers situated in West,
Central and East County to ensure the full spectrum of mental health services is
available. Wellness and Recovery Centers are made up of individuals embarking on
or expanding their recovery journey. Staff of well-trained peers who have
experienced their own recovery success share what they have learned and walk
alongside each person. The clients of Wellness and Recovery Centers learn to
identify personal strengths and develop personalized wellness plans that incorporate
their hopes and dreams for the future. Each participant partners with a Recovery
Coach who understands the challenges and is standing alongside ready to offer
support. These centers offer peer-led recovery-oriented, rehabilitation and self-help
groups, which teach self-management and coping skills. The centers offer wellness
recovery action plan (WRAP) groups, physical health and nutrition education,
advocacy services and training, arts and crafts, and support groups.

b. Scope of Services:

o Peer and Family Support



mailto:April.Langro@riinternational.com

o
o
o

Personal Recovery Planning using the seven steps of Recovery Coaching
Workshops, Education Classes and Community-Based Activities using the nine
dimensions of wellness; physical, emotional, intellectual, social, spiritual,
occupational, home/community living, financial, recreation/leisure

Community Outreach and Collaboration

Assist participants to coordinate medical, mental health, medication and other
community services

Wellness Recovery Action Plan (WRAP) classes

Family Education and Support Programs

Breakfast/Lunch meals during weekdays for participants

c. Target Population: Adult mental health participants in Contra Costa

County. Recovery Innovations services will be delivered within each region of the
county through Wellness and Recovery Centers located in Antioch, Concord and
San Pablo.

d. Payment Limit: FY 15/16: $1,117,058 (MHSA: 875,000)

e. Number served: FY 14/15: 451 (217 are active, regular participants)

f. Outcomes: 34% of citizens who attend one WRAP class complete the class. 37%
who attended one WELL class completed the class, 34% of those who attend one
Facing Up to Health class completed the class and 34% of those who attend one “My
Personal Wellness Plan” completed the class.



Contra Costa County SERVICE PLAN

Standard Form L-3
Revised 2014 Number__24-718-3
1. Program FEligibility. Contractor’s services shall be provided to former and current recipients of

mental health services who live and/or work in Contra Costa County, and who are eighteen (18) years
of age, or older. Contractor shall make its service delivery policy, which is incorporated herein by this
reference, available to the public for inspection. A person receiving any of Contractor’s services is
hereinafter referred to as a “Client”,

Scope of Services. During the term of this Contract, Contractor shall provide a range of community-
based mental health support services to County’s Adult Mental Health Clients. Contractor’s services
shall be provided in accordance with the Work Plan for this Contract which is incorporated herein by
this reference, copies of which are on file in the office of County’s Behavioral Health Services
Division Director and a copy of which County has provided to Contractor. Contractor’s services shall
include, but are not limited, to the following:

a. Operate Community Centers for the purpose of convening self-help/peer support groups and for
social and recreational activities at the following locations:

o  Central County .........cccovemrvmrrvivniviiesneennnn 2975 Treat Boulevard, Building C, Concord
o East County.....cocoevemmerveecinrececeireeenens 2400 Sycamore Drive, Suite 30/31, Antioch
s  West County.................... 2101 Vale Road, Suite 200, San Pablo Avenue, Richmond; and

b. Provide access to van transportation for Clients enrolled in program at the Community Centers;
and

c. Assist the Office of Consumer Empowerment in organizing and conducting County’s annual
Mental Health Service Provider Individualized Recovery Intensive Training (SPIRIT) for Clients
who are interested in working within the local mental health service delivery system.”

Program Objectives and Performance Evaluation. Contractor shall provide its program services so
as to achieve the service program objectives set forth in the Department’s Contract Performance Plan

for this Contract, which is on file in the administrative offices of the County’s Behavioral Health
Services Division Director, and which is incorporated herein by this reference. Contractor’s
performance under this Contract shall be evaluated by County staff on the basis of:

a.  The degree to which each specified service program objective was actually achieved, and
b.  The total number of service units that were actually provided by Contractor hereunder.

Performance Reports. Contractor shall prepare and submit to County periodic performance progress
reports as may be required by County’s Health Services Director, or designee. No later than sixty (60)
days following the termination of this Contract, Contractor shall prepare and submit to County an
Annual Performance Report, in the form and manner prescribed by County’s Health Services Director,
or designee, covering the entire term of this Contract.

Third-Party Payment Liability. Contractor shall be solely responsible for any payments due from
Contractor to third parties or for any liabilities, obligations, or commitments of Contractor arising
from Contractor’s performance of this Contract, including, but not limited to, any payments that
Contractor may owe to contractors or other suppliers for goods and services received by Contractor in
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Contra Costa County SERVICE PLAN
Standard Form L3

Revised 2014 Number_24-718-3

the operating, equipping, altering, remodeling, renovating, or repairing of Contractor’s program and
facilities established under this Contract. In no event shall County be responsible for any payments
due from Contractor to third parties or for any liabilities, obligations, or commitments of Contractor
arising from Contractor’s performance of this Contract.

6. Ownership and Disposition of Property and Equipment. Equipment and capital expenditure items

with a purchase price of $.500 or more and a useful life of at least one (1) year shall be defined as
nonexpendable property. Items with a purchase price of less than $.500 or a useful life of less than
one year shall be defined as expendable property. Subject to these definitions, the acquisition and
utilization of expendable property and nonexpendable property shall be determined in accordance with
the principles and statements set forth in the federal Office for Management and Budget (OMB)
Circular No. A-110, and any amendments thereto (references contained therein to the federal
government, federal agencies or “grantor” shall be construed to mean “County” and references to
“grantee” or “recipient” shall be construed to mean “Contractor”). Upon termination of this Contract,
or as otherwise may be prescribed by County, Contractor shall account for and transfer to County all
remaining expendable property and nonexpendable property, including supplies and equipment,
loaned by County for use by Contractor or acquired with Contract funds. Contractor shall exclude
items which are fully depreciated or which are purchased with outside, non-County funds. County
shall retain full ownership of all such transferred property.

7. Protection of Property and Equipment. Throughout the term of this Contract, and any modification
or extension thereof, Contractor shall:

a. Cooperate with County in tagging and appropriately identifying all program property and
equipment loaned by County for use by Contractor or acquired with Contract funds;

b. Establish a property management control system to ensure adequate safeguards to prevent loss,
theft, or damage to property, and maintain all equipment in good working repair at all times;

c. Investigate, fully document, and immediately report to appropriate police agencies and/or County
any loss, theft, or damage to property and equipment. Contractor shall repair or replace all such
items within sixty (60) days with items of comparable quality and value; and

d. Maintain accurate records of all equipment and other such property loaned by County for use by
Contractor or acquired with Contract funds, including property description, identification numbers,
acquisition date and cost, source, location, use, condition and disposition.

8.  Cost Report. Paragraph 7. (Cost Report and Settlement), of the Payment Provisions is hereby deleted
in its entirety and replaced with a new paragraph to read as follows:

“7. Cost Report and Settlement.

a. Due Date and Procedure. Contractor shall prepare, in the form and manner required by
County, a cost report showing allowable costs incurred by Contractor no later than sixty (60)
days following the later of the expiration or termination of this Contract (such expiration or
termination, the “Termination Date”) or receipt of the final InSyst/PSP Report #864 from
County. If said cost report shows that the allowable costs that have actually been incurred by
Contractor under this Contract exceed the payments made by County, subject nevertheless to
the Payment Limit of this Contract, County shall remit any such excess amount to
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Contractor, provided that the payments made, together with any such excess amount, may not
exceed the contract Payment Limit. If said cost report shows that the payments made by
County exceed the allowable costs that have actually been incurred by Contractor under this
Contract, Contractor shall remit any such excess amount to County.

b. Financial Report. No later than one hundred and eighty (180) days after the termination or
expiration of this Contract, Contractor shall provide to County a financial statement that has
been reviewed and verified by an independent Certified Public Accountant.

¢. Penaity for Late Submission of Cost Report or Financial Report. Inthe event Contractor

fails to submit an accurate and complete cost report or financial report within the appropriate
period, as described above, Contractor shall pay to County a late penalty in the amount of
One Hundred Dollars ($100) per day for each calendar day that the cost report is late (the
“Late Penalty”). The Late Penalty shall commence on the first day following the determined
due date of the Report. If Contractor does not submit an accurate and complete cost report
or financial report by the one hundred twentieth (120th) day following the appropriately
determined due date of the report, Contractor shall pay to County, upon demand, all amounts
covered by the outstanding cost report and paid by County to Contractor in the fiscal year for
which the cost report or financial report is outstanding. Penalties pursuant to this
subparagraph may, for good cause, be waived, either in part or in their entirety, at the sole
discretion of the Health Services Director, or designee.”

9. Audit Requirements. Paragraph 8. (Audits), of the Payment Provisions is hereby deleted in its
entirety, and replaced with a new Paragraph, to read as follows:

“8.

Audits. The records of Contractor may be audited by the County, State, or United States
government. Contractor shall submit an accurate and complete audit(s) to County within one
hundred eighty (180) days following the Termination Date of this Contract, in the form and
manner required by County, as set forth herein.

In the event Contractor fails to submit such an audit, all payments due to Contractor under this,
or any other Contracts between Contractor and County for its Health Services Department, will
be suspended until the required audit(s) has been submitted to County. Upon approval of
Contractor’s audit(s) by the Health Services Director, or designee, County will resume any
payments due to Contractor under the terms of the Contract(s). Payment suspensions pursuant to
this paragraph may, for good cause be waived, either in part or in their entirety, at the sole
discretion of the County Administrator, or designee.

If such audit(s) show that the payments made by County exceed the allowable costs that have
actually been incurred by Contractor under this Contract, including any adjustments made
pursuant to Paragraph 7. (Cost Report and Settlement), then Contractor shall pay County within
thirty (30) days of demand by County any such excess amount. If such audit(s) show that the
allowable costs that have actually been incurred by Contractor under this Contract exceed the
payments made by County, including any adjustments made pursuant to Paragraph 7. (Cost
Report and Settlement), then County agrees to pay Contractor any such excess amount, provided
that payments made, together with any such excess payment, may not exceed the contract
Payment Limit.”
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Contra Costa County SERVICE PLAN
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10.  Automatic Extension. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Contract, unless this Contract is

11.

terminated prior to June 30,2016 , by either party pursuant to Paragraph 5. (Termination), of the
General Conditions, the term of this Contract shall be automatically extended for the six (6)-month
period through December 31,2016 (the “Extension Period”). During the Extension Period, this
contract is nevertheless subject to all the terms and conditions applicable during its initial term,
including but not limited to General Conditions Paragraph 5. (Termination), except as to payment for
services rendered during the extended term. The purpose of the Extension Period is to allow for
continuation of services as specified in this Contract, to avoid interruption of payment to Contractor,
and to allow County time in which to complete a novation or renewal contract for Contractor and
County Board of Supervisors approval. As to the Extension Period of this Contract:

a. If this Contract is automatically extended, the Contract Payment Limit specified in Paragraph 4.
(Payment Limit), of this Contract, is increased by $_558,259 _(the “Extension Period Payment
Limit”) and County’s total payments to Contractor for said extension period will not exceed the
Extension Period Payment Limit, subject, nevertheless, to the aforesaid novation or renewal
contract;

b. County will pay Contractor in accordance with the Payment Provisions, subject to the Extension
Period Payment Limit specified above;

c. Contractor will continue to provide services as set forth in the Service Plan, subject to any
amendments thereto;

d. The Extension Period will be subject to any further agreement (novation) which Contractor and
County may enter into covering the provision of services during the contract period immediately
following the contract period specified in Paragraph 3. (Term), in accordance with Contra Costa
County’s current revision of the project, if any, specified in Paragraph 8. (Project); and

. In addition to the cost report specified in Paragraph 7. (Cost Report and Settlement), of the
Payment Provisions, as amended by the Service Plan, paragraph 8, Cost Report above, Contractor
shall also submit to County, no later than sixty (60) days following termination of this Contract as
extended, an extension period cost report covering the period of this six (6)-month extension.
County and Contractor shall follow the cost report and settlement procedures specified in above-
referenced Paragraph 7. (Cost Report and Settlement), of the Payment Provisions, subject to the
Extension Period Payment Limit specified above for the Extension Period.

o

Payment Adjustments for Unauthorized Expenditures.

a. If any funds are expended by Contractor in violation of the terms of this Contract (including all
applicable statutes, regulations, guidelines, bulletins, and circulars), or if County determines that
any payment amounts received by Contractor are for unallowable costs, County may deduct the
amount of such unauthorized or illegal expenditures or unallowable costs from payments otherwise
payable to Contractor in order to recover any amount expended for such unauthorized purposes in
the current or in the four preceding fiscal years. No such action taken by County shall entitle
Contractor to reduce program operations or salaries, wages, fringe benefits, or services for any
program participant, or client, including Contractor’s staff, or to expend less during the effective
term of this Contract than those amounts specified in the Budget of Estimated Program
Expenditures included in the Service Plan. Any such reduction in expenditures may be deemed
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sufficient cause for termination of this Contract. Within thirty (30) days of request by County,
Contractor shall reimburse County for any payments made for expenditures which are in violation
of this Contract.

b. Contractor shall indemnify County fully and completely for any repayment of funds made by the
County to the State or Federal governments after it has been determined that such repayment is
required from the County due to the unauthorized or illegal expenditures by Contractor. The State
or Federal government’s determination as to the necessity for any such repayment shall be
conclusive as between County and Contractor.

12. HIPAA Requirements. Contractor must comply with the applicable requirements and procedures
established by the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) of 1996 and any
modifications thereof, including, but not limited to, the attached HIPAA Business Associate Attachment,
which is incorporated herein by reference.
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Service Provider Budget










APPENDIX D

Yearly External Fiscal Audit


















































































APPENDIX E

Organization Chart




Contra Costa Wellness Cities

BETH HAMMONDS

Regional Director
Western

TBD Debra Shearer

Recovery Services .
y I Support Services

Administrator (RSA)
Coordinator (SSC)

Tim Richardson Ron Nunez Marilyn Tims
Team Lead Team Lead Team Lead
East County (Antioch) Central County (Concord) West County (San Pablo)
Jeannine Mills Dorothy O’'Dwyer Carolyn Moore
Recovery Coach Recovery Coach Recovery Coach
Carmella San Miguel Kathleen Brissey Don Severn
Recovery Coach Recovery Coach Recovery Coach
Citizen Citizen Citizen

Contributors Contributors Contributors

Recovery Coach Pool
Ryan Nestman
Donna Bakun
TaTama Davis



DAVID COVINGTON
CEO & President

ELIZABETH HARKIN
Chief of Corporate
Compliance

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Rl International

1
LEON BOYKO SUE ANN ATKERSON

KAREN CHANEY?

RANDY LITTLE

Chief Rl Crisis

SARAH BLANKA
Regional Director
Arizona

JERRY FISHMAN
Regional Director
Eastern

JAMIE SELLAR
Regional Director
Western

CRYSTAL DOTSON
Executive Assistant

N=ENOINNN
Chief Information
Officer

Chief Operating
Officer

BETH HAMMONDS
Regional Director
Western

WILLARD HEUSER
Regional Director
Delaware

ANN HOLLAND
Regional Director
North Carolina

MARLEIGH O'MEARA
Regional Director
Arizona

CHUCK SCHULTZ
Director Business
Operations

1 Sue Ann Atkerson leads Rl Health & Rl Recovery

Executive Director,
RI Consulting

LISA ST. GEORGE
Director Recovery
Practices

AMY PUGSLEY
Director Quality &
Compliance

DEB SCHUERMAN
Director HR

PEGGY COPE
Admin Coordinator

Chief Administrative
Officer

TBD
Chief Financial
Officer

SUSAN COLEMAN
Executive Project
Manager

CAROLE PFEIL
Chief Comm. &
Marketing

JEFF DEAVILA
Media Consultant

2 Dr. Karen Chaney also the Chief Medical Officer for RI International



Mental Health Services Act (MHSA)

Program and Fiscal Review

Date of On-site Review: March 4, 2016
Date of Exit Meeting: June 30, 2016

Review Team: Michelle Nobori, Warren Hayes, Michelle Rodriguez-Ziemer, and
Stephanie Chenard

Name of Program/Plan Element: Youth Homes Transition Aged Youth (TAY)
Full Service Partnership (FSP)

Program Description.

Youth Homes provides a Full Service Partnership (FSP) Program funded by the
Mental Health Services Act (MHSA). The program offers a comprehensive range
of services and supports, including intensive individualized mental health
services in Contra Costa County, for youth aged 16-25 with serious emotional
disturbance/serious mental illness and who are likely to exhibit co-occurring
disorders with severe life stressors. Services are based in East and Central
Contra Costa County.

Purpose of Review. Contra Costa Behavioral Health Services is
committed to evaluating the effective use of funds provided by the Mental Health
Services Act. Toward this end a comprehensive program and fiscal review was
conducted of the above program. The results of this review are contained herein,
and will assist in a) improving the services and supports that are provided, b)
more efficiently support the County’s MHSA Three Year Program and
Expenditure Plan, and c) ensure compliance with statute, regulations and policy.
In the spirit of continually working toward better services we most appreciate this
opportunity to collaborate together with the staff and clients participating in this
program in order to review past and current efforts, and plan for the future.



VI.

Summary of Findings.

program

Topic Met Notes
Standard
. Deliver services according to Met Consumers and family
the values of the MHSA members indicated
program meets the
values of MHSA
. Serve the agreed upon target Partially met | Centralized Utilization
population. Review findings suggest
that documentation does
not clearly justify how
TAY FSP services differ
from other community
service providers (i.e.,
First Place for Youth,
CASA, etc.)
. Provide the services for which Met Staff indicates that they
funding was allocated. experience more client
need than they are
equipped to address.
. Meet the needs of the Met Services are consistent
community and/or population. with Three Year Plan
. Serve the number of individuals Met Program serves the
that have been agreed upon. number of clients
outlined in the Service
Work Plan on an annual
basis
. Achieve the outcomes that Partially Met Program meets most
have been agreed upon. outcomes
. Quality Assurance Partially Met | Utilization review
indicated program
meets most quality
assurance standards
. Ensure protection of Met The program is HIPAA
confidentiality of protected compliant
health information.
. Staffing sufficient for the Partially Met Staffing level supports

targeted service
numbers but split




responsibility between
FSP and AfterCare has
made for unclear roles
between the two

programs
10. Annual independent fiscal audit Met No material weaknesses
found.
11.Fiscal resources sufficient to Met At current pace fiscal
deliver and sustain the services year billing may exceed
contract amount
12. Oversight sufficient to comply Met Experienced staff
with generally accepted implement sound check
accounting principles and balance system.
13.Documentation sufficient to Unmet Staff and operating costs
support invoices divided among multiple
contracts without
documented
methodology
14.Documentation sufficient to Unmet Clear audit trail not
support allowable expenditures established between
expenses and billing
15. Documentation sufficient to Met No billings noted for
support expenditures invoiced previous fiscal year
in appropriate fiscal year expenses.
16. Administrative costs sufficiently Met Indirect charged at 10%.
justified and appropriate to the
total cost of the program
17.Insurance policies sufficient to Met Necessary insurance is
comply with contract in place
18. Effective communication Partially Met | Split contract

between contract manager and
contractor

management duties at
the County has led to
poor communication
between Youth Homes
and the contract
manager




VII.

Review Results. The review covered the following areas:

. Deliver services according to the values of the Mental Health Services Act

(California Code of Regulations Section 3320 — MHSA General Standards).
Does the program collaborate with the community, provide an integrated service
experience, promote wellness, recovery and resilience, be culturally competent,

and be client and family driven.

Method. Consumer, family member and service provider interviews and

consumer surveys.

Results. The results of twenty consumer surveys were received. The maijority
of the survey responses were consistent with consumer interviews; namely, they
show a positive evaluation of the program; and that the program adheres to

MHSA values.
Questions Responses:
Please indicate how strongly you agree
or disagree with the following
statements regarding persons who work : ,
with you: Strongly | Agree | Disagree | Strongly | | don't
(Options: strongly agree, agree, disagree, | Adree Disagree | know
strongly disagree, | don’t know) 4 3 2 1 0

1. Help me improve my health and
wellness

Average score: 3.30 (n=20) n denotes the number
of respondents who scored the item between 1
and 4. The remainder of respondents either did

not score or scored “I don’t know.”

2. Allow me to decide what my own
strengths and needs

Average score: 3.25 (n=20)

3. Work with me to determine the services
that are most helpful

Average score: 3.60 (n=20)

4. Provide services that are sensitive to
my cultural background.

Average score: 3.45 (n=20)

5. Provide services that are in my
preferred language

Average score: 3.60 (n=20)

6. Help me in getting needed health,
employment, education and other
benefits and services.

Average score: 3.30 (n=20)

7. Are open to my opinions as to how
services should be provided

Average score 3.35 (n=20)

Your response to the following
guestions is appreciated:

8. What does this program do well?

Answers included the following statements:

¢ Provide money management services; offer

financial and budgeting supports
e Provide housing support
e Provide transportation to doctor’'s
appointments




e Helps with independence
e Provide support

9. What does this program need to
improve upon?

Answers included the following statements:
¢ Not enough time with staff
More advocacy support and resource nights

10. What needed services and supports
are missing?

[ ]

e Vocational support

¢ Availability of housing options, especially after
Juvenile Hall

e More support after hours

e Additional funding

11. How important is this program in
helping you improve your health and
wellness, live a self-directed life, and
reach your full potential?

(Options: Very important, Important,
Somewhat important, Not Important.)

Very
Important
4

Important

3

Somewhat
Important
2

Not
Important
1

Average score: 3.79 (n=19)

12. Any additional comments?

None

Consumer Interviews

Approximately 12 youth and three family members who interact with Youth
Homes were interviewed as a group. The length of times that each consumer
had been involved with the program varied from just a few months to several
years. Consumers reported their initial referrals to Youth Homes from several
sources: incarceration, residential treatment, county case managers, and other
care providers. One of the young people indicated that he aged into the program

through foster care.

Overall, the young people were very appreciative of the services provided by
Youth Homes. During the interview, some of the things specifically identified as

positives of the program were:

e They felt there was good accessibility to someone — they could call any time

of day and reach someone if they were in crisis (not just 9-5);
e For the most part, the staff were professional, well-organized, and attentive;
e There are a variety of services focused on recovery and independent living.

These positives clearly speak to several of the MHSA values. However, there

were some areas identified for improvement. Some of these issues were:

e Clinician turn-over, or switching clinicians for clients felt disorienting. (One
participant indicated they had 4 clinicians in 4 months, which made them feel
disconnected and not want to engage in therapy.)




e Other consumers noted that certain content covered in programs triggered
emotional issues for persons focusing on recovery.

e There was also concerns voiced that they weren’t quite receiving as many of
the services they needed for recovery. (Suggestions included: greater
financialffiscal responsibility training, sex education, and navigating higher
education.)

These are areas for opportunity for the program to strengthen their client/family
driven domains
Staff Interview:

Ten individuals attended the staff interview. Staff roles varied from Behavioral
Support Counselors, Junior Clinicians, Youth Advocates and the Workforce
Development Manager. Staff shared that the program receives referrals from the
regional adult mental health clinic as well as from the Forensic Mental Health
program. Staff provide care as a team and offer case management, referrals to
community resources, life skills training, and housing supports. Staff report
spending most of their time working with their clients through daily challenges,
such as reducing their isolation and re-integrating them into the community,
providing support to youth in jail or in the hospital, and providing ongoing support
to increase independent livings skills. According to program staff, a reported
strength of the program was the ability to match clients to culturally appropriate
staff.

During the interview, staff also shared barriers they faced in providing services to
the youth, such as a lack of resources and difficulty in connecting program
participants with County Vocational Services via the East County Adult Mental
Health Clinic. Staff also shared that they felt like there was not enough time in
the work day to truly be able to work with their clients. However, a major
incentive to their work was being able to work with underserved clients and the
ability to develop long-term relationships.

Discussion. Interviews with program participants and service providers as well
as program participant survey results all support that Youth Homes delivers
programming in accordance with the values of MHSA.

. Serve the agreed upon target population. For Community Services and
Supports, does the program serve adults with a serious mental illness or children
or youth with a serious emotional disturbance. . Does the program serve the
agreed upon target population (such as age group, underserved community).



Method. Compare the program description and/or service work plan with a
random sampling of client charts or case files.

Results. The Youth Homes Full Service Partnership program accepts referrals
upon receiving approval from the East County Adult Clinic. The FSP program
undergoes regular utilization reviews conducted by the East County Adult Mental
Health Clinic’s utilization review staff to ensure all clients meet the criteria for
both specialty mental health services and adult full service partnerships. The
MHSA chart review conducted by the MHSA Program and Fiscal Review team
confirms that four of the six charts reviewed met the agreed upon target
population for full service partnerships. Two charts had incomplete
documentation to support a full determination whether the youth met target
population or not. Additionally, LOCUS scores have indicated that TAY FSP
services should have a composite score higher than 24.

Contra Costa County also performs a utilization review on all programs which bill
Medi-Cal, including Youth Homes. On April 29, 2016 and December 2, 2015 a
Level Two Centralized Utilization Chart Review was conducted. For all of the
charts reviewed, clients met medical necessity for specialty mental health
services as specified in the Welfare and Institutions Code (WIC) Section
5600.3(b).

Discussion. The program serves the agreed upon population.

. Provide the services for which funding was allocated. Does the program
provide the number and type of services that have been agreed upon.

Method. Compare the service work plan or program service goals with regular
reports and match with case file reviews and client/family member and service
provider interviews.

Results. Monthly service summaries and 931 and 864 Reports from Contra
Costa County Mental Health'’s billing system show that the Youth Homes Full
Service Partnership program is, with a few notable exceptions, providing the
number and type of services that have been agreed upon. Services include
outreach and engagement, case management, individual outpatient mental
health services, crisis intervention, collateral, housing and vocational support.
Clients receive psychiatric services from agency psychiatrists located at the
Youth Homes’ Pleasant Hill location. The FSP Program has also been successful
in linking services for primary health and access to nursing care with Brighter
Beginnings, an agency co-located at their Antioch location.

Both program staff and participants indicated services are available on a 24-7
basis via an after-hours crisis phone line. As an agency, Youth Homes employs
a Workforce Development Manager to support consumers in gaining employment



skills and connection to employment resources. However, the position is not
solely for FSP consumers and is located in the main Pleasant Hill office.
Programming to support additional vocational services is currently undergoing
expansion. Youth Homes has also referred their clients to the County Mental
Health Vocational Services program; however, one staff member stated that
he/she had difficulty in accessing the Vocational Services Counselor located at
the East County Adult Clinic.

Discussion. MHSA funds directed to the agency cover expenditures associated
with supporting the provision of the Youth Homes’ Full Service Partnership
program. However, the current staffing structure and budget allocation of staff
time and salaries has made it challenging for the County to clearly evaluate the
provision of the full spectrum of services outlined in the Service Work Plan.
Interviews with staff indicated that the youth that they are working with have
bigger needs than Youth Homes can support. Staff repeated continuously that
the FSP program has capacity to take on more clients. However, staff report the
program is only receiving high acuity referrals, and needs additional support in
balancing caseloads. During contract negotiations for FY 16/17 and the
upcoming 3-year plan, Youth Homes and the County should examine the
program budget, Service Work Plan and available community resources to
determine how best to address service gaps.

. Meet the needs of the community and/or population. Is the program meeting
the needs of the population/community for which it was designed. Has the
program been authorized by the Board of Supervisors as a result of a community
program planning process. Is the program or plan element consistent with the
MHSA Three Year Program and Expenditure Plan.

Method. Research the authorization and inception of the program for adherence
to the Community Program Planning Process. Match the service work plan or
program description with the Three Year Plan. Compare with consumer/family
member and service provider interviews. Review client surveys.

Results. The Full Service Partnership programs were included in the original
Community Services and Supports plan that was approved in May 2006 and
included in subsequent plan updates. The program has been authorized by the
Board of Supervisors and is consistent with the current MHSA Three-Year
Program and Expenditure Plan. Interviews with service providers and program
participants support the notion that the program meets its goals and the needs of
the community it serves.

Discussion. The program meets the needs of the community and the population
for which they are designated.



5. Serve the number of individuals that have been agreed upon. Has the
program been serving the number of individuals specified in the program
description/service work plan, and how has the number served been trending the
last three years.

Method. Match program description/service work plan with history of monthly
reports and verify with supporting documentation, such as logs, sign-in sheets
and case files.

Results. Upon initial award of the TAY FSP contract, Youth Homes target
enrollment number was 60 clients. Due primarily to the higher acuity level of
clients, the target enrollment for Youth Homes was lowered to 30 clients during
FY 15/16. Concurrent monthly program enrollment has ranged between 22 and
27 clients this fiscal year. Note, the monthly enroliment numbers could be
artificially low as data entry into the PSP and DCR data systems does not occur
within 30 days of enroliment.

Discussion. Annually the program has served the number of individuals
specified in the service work plan. Youth Homes and county staff may need to
examine the current program caseload and re-evaluate the staff-to-client ratios to
the Service Work Plan to appropriately reflect the complexity of the clients being
served.

6. Achieve the outcomes that have been agreed upon. |s the program meeting
the agreed upon outcome goals, and how has the outcomes been trending.
Method. Match outcomes reported for the last three years with outcomes
projected in the program description/service work plan, and verify validity of
outcome with supporting documentation, such as case files or charts. Outcome
domains include, as appropriate, incidence of restriction, incidence of psychiatric
crisis, meaningful activity, psychiatric symptoms, consumer satisfaction/quality of
life, and cost effectiveness. Analyze the level of success by the context, as
appropriate, of pre- and post-intervention, control versus experimental group,
year-to-year difference, comparison with similar programs, or measurement to a
generally accepted standard.

Results. Because Youth Homes’ FSP program started late in FY 13/14, an
annual outcomes report was not produced for their first contract of providing FSP
services. The program has five program objectives as part of the service work
plan. The program has provided an annual report summarizing their progress
towards meeting some of their program five outcomes. The program has met two
of the four primary objectives (including reduction in incidence of psychiatric
crisis and inpatient and sub-acute care), while falling short on reducing the
average number of inpatient days. There has been no conclusive data to support



the remaining objectives of improving psychological and community risk of harm,
reduction of use of alcohol and drugs, and reduction in incarceration.

Data provided by the County comes from (1) service data generated from the
Contra Costa County claims processing system, (2) data collected by the
program, and (3) County’s data system.

Discussion. Overall, the program achieves its primary objectives. However,
success indicators should be refined based upon the program’s experience and
survey practices. The indicators should focus on determining success in
improving mental health outcomes.

. Quality Assurance. How does the program/plan element assure quality of
service provision.

Method. Review and report on results of participation in County’s utilization
review, quality management incidence reporting, and other appropriate means of
quality of service review.

Results. Contra Costa County did not receive any grievances associated with
Youth Homes’ Full Service Partnership program. The program has an internal
grievance procedure in place and clients receive information on how to file
complaints as part of the agency’s Notice of Privacy Practices. The program
undergoes regular Level 1 and Level 2 utilization reviews conducted by the
County Mental Health utilization review teams to ensure that program services
and documentation meet regulatory standards. Level 1 and Level 2 utilization
review reports indicate that Youth Homes is generally in compliance with
documentation and quality standards. On April 29, 2016 and December 2, 2015,
a Level Two Centralized Utilization Chart Reviews and a Focused Review were
conducted by County Mental Health. On December 2, 2015, a Focused Chart
Review was conducted by County Mental Health on the Youth Homes C5
program, as well as the Youth Homes TAY program. The results show that charts
were generally compliant, but there were findings related to disallowances for
billable notes for individual therapy, assessments and collateral (family therapy)
conducted by staff whose licensure status was not current with the Board of
Behavioral Sciences. On April 29, 2016 a Level Two Centralized Utilization Chart
Review was conducted by County Mental Health. Several documentation issues
were identified during the Review and some resulted in disallowances. Utilization
Review staff provided feedback around administrative issues as well as guidance
regarding linking progress note content to the client's mental health issues and
functional impairments. Significant disallowances were around many progress
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notes not containing enough information or documentation to support the time
billed, as well as lacking a clearly documented mental health intervention.
Discussion. The program has a quality assurance process in place.

. Ensure protection of confidentiality of protected health information. What
protocols are in place to comply with the Health Insurance Portability and
Accountability Assurance (HIPAA) Act, and how well does staff comply with the
protocol.

Method. Match the HIPAA Business Associate service contract attachment with
the observed implementation of the program’s implementation of a protocol for
safeguarding protected patient health information.

Results. Youth Homes has written policies and provides staff training on HIPAA
requirements and safeguarding of patient information. Client charts are kept in
locked file cabinets, behind a locked door and comply with HIPAA standards.
Clients and program participants are informed about their privacy rights and rules
of confidentiality.

Discussion. The program complies with HIPAA requirements.

. Staffing sufficient for the program. Is there sufficient dedicated staff to deliver
the services, evaluate the program for sufficiency of outcomes and continuous
quality improvement, and provide sufficient administrative support.

Method. Match history of program response with organization chart, staff
interviews and duty statements.

Results. The current staffing allows the agency to serve the targeted number of
clients. However, unclear roles and split allocations between the FSP and
AfterCare program has made it difficult for Youth Homes to provide the full
spectrum of services to its Full Service Partnership clients. Limited services are
provided within the local vicinity of the Antioch office and integral services, such
as psychiatry and vocational services, are reliant on transporting clients from
Antioch to Pleasant Hill.

Discussion. Sufficient staffing is in place to serve the number of clients outlined
in the Service Work Plan; however, an actual time study on how much time is
spent with clients could support the agency’s effort to analyze how much staff is
actually needed for FSP level of care.

10.Annual independent fiscal audit. Did the organization have an annual

independent fiscal audit performed and did the independent auditors issue any
findings.

Method. Obtain and review audited financial statements. If applicable, discuss
any findings or concerns identified by auditors with fiscal manager.

11



11.

Results. Annual independent fiscal audits for FY 2012-13 and 13-14 were
provided and reviewed. No significant findings were noted, and Youth Homes,
Inc. was considered a low risk auditee.

Discussion. Youth Homes, Inc. is a California non-profit community based

corporation established to provide a range of services to foster care children

placed with it by various government agencies. With approximately 83
employees and a total operating budget of $4 million the available fiscal audits
indicate Youth Homes, Inc. not to be at risk for adverse fiscal consequences due

to their fiscal and accounting systems.

Fiscal resources sufficient to deliver and sustain the services. Does
organization have diversified revenue sources, adequate cash flow, sufficient
coverage of liabilities, and qualified fiscal management to sustain program or
plan element.

Method. Review audited financial statements. Review Board of Director’s
meeting minutes. Interview fiscal manager of program.

Results. Fiscal resources are currently sufficient to deliver and sustain
services. However, the invoicing of the Full Service Partnership contract for
current year (contract #7-5136) has been averaging a monthly billing of $67,822
through January 2016. At this rate the agency will have spent its authorized
contract limit of $668,000 before June 2016. Youth Homes fiscal staff are
currently in the process of adjusting their billing to fit within the total contract
allowable amount.

Discussion. The organization appears to be operating outside the budget
constraints provided by their authorized contract amount, and maybe unable to
sustain their stated costs of delivering FSP services for the entirety of this fiscal
year.

12.0versight sufficient to comply with generally accepted accounting

principles. Does organization have appropriate qualified staff and internal
controls to assure compliance with generally accepted accounting principles.
Method. Interview with fiscal manager of program.

Results. The fiscal manager, contract accounting consultant and accounting
staff were interviewed. Sufficient oversight exists to enable compliance with
generally accepted accounting principles.

Discussion. The fiscal staff are well qualified, and have been with Youth Homes
for many years. Staff described established protocols that are in place to enable
a check and balance system to assure compliance with generally accepted
accounting principles. The organization uses QuickBooks and Paychex software
for entry and aggregation to enable accurate summaries for billing and payment.
Supporting documentation are kept in hard copies for storage and retrieval.
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13.Documentation sufficient to support invoices. Do the organization’s financial
reports support monthly invoices charged to the program and ensure no
duplicate billing.
Method. Reconcile financial system with monthly invoices. Interview fiscal
manager of program or plan element.
Results. Supporting documentation was not able to be matched with budget line
item summary expenditures that accompany monthly invoices.
Discussion. Financial staff explained that this was due to personnel, operating
and indirect costs being spread pro rata across multiple contracts and funding
sources, and that the cost assignment methodology and apportionment is
decided at the executive level. At the time of the site visit no system or written
methodology was provided that would enable an outside auditor to determine the
appropriateness of allocating correct portions of personnel time and operating
costs to this contract. For example, staff allocated to this contract are also
allocated to another County Behavioral Health Services contract (AfterCare
Program). Staff offered to send as a follow-up their invoicing and billing
summaries to the County for this second contract in order to rule out the County
being billed for more than 100% of costs.

14.Documentation sufficient to support allowable expenditures. Does
organization have sufficient supporting documentation (payroll records and
timecards, receipts, allocation bases/statistics) to support program personnel and
operating expenditures charged to the program.
Method. Match random sample of one month of supporting documentation for
each fiscal year (up to three years) for identification of personnel costs and
operating expenditures invoiced to the county.
Results. Method of allocation of percentage of personnel time, operating and
indirect costs need to be justified and documented.
Discussion. Youth Homes has a cost based contract with the county, and
should be billing for actual allowable costs incurred and paid. They indicate that
their actual costs for delivering contract services are exceeding the contractually
agreed upon budget. A review of their budget line items and supporting
documentation do not provide sufficient clarity as to whether this is actually the
case. Itis recommended that Youth Homes work with the County to determine
whether an increase is warranted for their FY 16-17 contract renewal due to an
increase in the cost of doing business.

15.Documentation sufficient to support expenditures invoiced in appropriate
fiscal year. Do organization’s financial system year end closing entries support
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expenditures invoiced in appropriate fiscal year (i.e., fiscal year in which
expenditures were incurred regardless of when cash flows).

Method. Reconcile year end closing entries in financial system with invoices.
Interview fiscal manager of program.

Results. Youth Homes appears to be implementing an appropriate year end
closing system.

Discussion. Closing entries for FY 2014-15 were within contract limit, with no
billing by this agency for expenses incurred and paid in a previous fiscal year.

16.Administrative costs sufficiently justified and appropriate to the total cost
of the program. Is the organization’s allocation of administrative/indirect costs
to the program commensurate with the benefit received by the program or plan
element.
Method. Review methodology and statistics used to allocate
administrative/indirect costs. Interview fiscal manager of program.
Results. Administrative costs are commensurate with the benefit received by
the program.
Discussion. Youth Homes has been budgeting and billing indirect costs at 10%,
which is below industry standard

17.Insurance policies sufficient to comply with contract. Does the organization
have insurance policies in effect that are consistent with the requirements of the
contract.
Method. Review insurance policies.
Results. The program provided certificate of liability insurance, which included
general liability, automobile liability, umbrella liability, workers compensation and
professional liability, which was in effect at the time of the site visit.
Discussion. The program complies with the contract insurance requirements.

18.Effective communication between contract manager and contractor. Do
both the contract manager and contractor staff communicate routinely and clearly
regarding program activities, and any program or fiscal issues as they arise.
Method. Interview contract manager and contractor staff.
Results. To date, contract management duties have been split among various
Contra Costa County Behavioral Health Services staff. This has led to poor
communication between Behavioral Health Services and the program regarding
activities and invoicing related to MHSA as well as pertaining to program issues.
Discussion. It is recommended that one county staff person be designated as
the contract monitor for this contract, and that regular communication occur
between Youth Homes and the county designee.
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VIII.

X.

XI.

Summary of Results.

Youth Homes is committed to serving the needs of abused and neglected
children and adolescents and has been successful in supporting youth living with
mental illness in obtaining housing, reducing symptoms and connecting more
fully to their community. The Youth Homes Transition-Age Youth Full Service
Partnership in East and Central County adheres to the values of MHSA. The
program staff and program participants believe the program is valuable. The
current program structure is tightly interwoven with the AfterCare program and
has complicated staff roles and the ability to distinguish what appropriate level of
care and services a youth may need. Youth Homes and the county will work
collaboratively to continuously evaluate the programming and financial impact of
the Transition-Age Youth Full Service Partnership program.

Findings for Further Attention.

e |tis recommended that Youth Homes and the county begin contract
negotiations for the FY 16/17 contract as soon as possible. During
contract negotiations, Youth Homes and the county should work together
to better align the program structure with the full service partnership
structure outlined in the MHSA regulations.

e |tis recommended that Youth Homes work with the county to determine
whether an increase is warranted for their FY 16-17 contract renewal due
to an increase in the cost of doing business.

e Itis recommended that Youth Homes re-evaluate its allocation process
and invoicing procedure to provide a clear methodology and sufficient
documentation to support actual costs being charged to the county by the
FSP program.

e |tis recommended that Youth Homes revise its outcome deliverables to
focus more measureable mental health outcomes.

Next Review Date. February 2019

Appendices.

Appendix A — Agency Response Letter

Appendix B — Program Description/Service Work Plan

Appendix C — Service Provider Budget (Contractor)
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Appendix D — Yearly External Fiscal Audit (Contractor)
Appendix E — Organization Chart

Xll.  Working Documents that Support Findings.
Consumer Listing

Consumer, Family Member Surveys

Consumer, Family Member, Provider Interviews
County MHSA Monthly Financial Report

Progress Reports, Outcomes

Monthly Invoices with Supporting Documentation (Contractor)
Indirect Cost Allocation Methodology/Plan (Contractor)
Board of Directors’ Meeting Minutes (Contractor)
Insurance Policies (Contractor)

MHSA Three Year Plan and Update(s)
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homes

where hape fives and grows

Ms. Michelle Nobari
Behavioral Health Services
1340 Arnold Dr., Suite 200
Martinez, CA 94553

Dear Michelle,

Below is our response to your Program and Fiscal Review of our program. We have only responded to the items listed as
“partially met” or “unmet.”

2) Serve the agreed upon target population — Partially met. We are confident that Youth Homes serves the target poputation
required under our contract for TAY/FSP clients. We do acknowledge that, at times, we have not differentiated Youth Homes
TAY FSP services from other services such as housing programs. It is important to note that the other programs listed in the
review do not provide Mental Health services so there could be no duplication of services. This documentation concern has
been addressed with staff and is no longer an issue in our progress notes.

In terms of meeting LOCUS level of care need criteria, there does seem to be some confusion. Full Service Partnership is a level
of care #5 service and a score of 23 is listed on the scoring sheet our UR team, direct service staff and supervisors all received
from the County. We are not sure where the above 24 originated and it is not on any written materials we could find. That
being said, there are times when we have consumers in service fade out, who are in the process of being discharged to a lower
level of care, which may result in a score at a 20-22 LOCUS during that transition period,

6) Quality Assurance, Outcomes — Partially met. We appreciated the acknowledgement from MHSA Management that our
program has met most of our goals. We are working on strengthening and clarifying outcome goals and the process for
measurement for specific treatment. This will result in improved outcomes for this year and in the future,

7} Quality Assurance — Partially met. We do acknowledge that our documentation was not as good as it should have been and
we have re-trained all supervisors and line staff to assure proper documentation. We have also extensively revised and
expanded our internal documentation training materials.

9] staffing Sufficient for the Program - Partially met., 13) Documentation Sufficient to Support Invoices — Unmet. and 14)
Documentation Sufficient to Support Allowable Expenditures - Partially met. Our fiscal documentation and budgeting for this
program has been revised with assistance and approval from county MHSA contract management and is now fuily in
compliance.

1B) Effective Communication Between Contract Manager and Contractor. We have found the support of the MHSA contract
managers to be extremely valuable in improving our programs in the areas of clinical services, documentation compliance and
cost allocation. We are grateful for their support and guidance. As noted in our exit meeting, some county programs are less
clear in their expectations of contract services and we appreciate the consistency of the MHSA programs.

Sincerely,

" il s

Stuart McCullough

Chief Executive Officer
Youth Homes, Inc,

P.0. Box 5759

Walnut Creek, CA 94596
(925) 933-2627

www.youthhomes.org

Cc: Kim Chilvers
Jeff Sliemers
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Attachment A

Youth Homes, Inc
Transition Age Youth - Full Service Partnership
PROGRAM BUDGET FY 2015-2016

Revenue

Expenses

Personnel

MHSA Funding
Medi-Cal
Fundraising
Total Revenue

Program Director

Clinical Director, MFT
Treatment Specialists/Clinicians
Registered Nurse

Peer Specialists

Employment specialist
Administrative Asst.

Total Salaries

Employer taxes & fringe benefits
Total Salaries and Benefits

Contract Personnel
Psychiatrist (Contract)
Nursing Services (Contract)

Total Contract Personnel

Direct Program Expenses

Flex Funds
Transportation

Food

Total Direct Program

Direct Program Support

Supplies

Office Start-up Costs

Online services
Telephone/Internet access
Copier (Lease)

Training

Mileage

Total Direct Program Support

Occupanc Lease

Utilities/Janitorial

Insurance

Total Occupancy

Total Expenses (before Admin)
Administrative Overhead (15%)

TOTAL PROGRAM EXPENSES
Program reserves

Prop 2 = Nov billing x 12

3.0FTE

Original .50 FTE, now contracted
2

1. FTE

at 30%

Original
2015-2016

(12 months)

380,000
285,000
3,000

AP B BH

668,000

12,048
45,000
162,000

©®H P B

64,000
5,000
30,000
318,048
95,414

PP PP P B

413,462

43,000
12,000
55,000

H|H B

12,000

2,000
18,000
32,000

AP B BH

>

1,000

800
7,500
1,200
3,600

40,000
54,100

AP B H PP

16,449
4,708
5,150

26,307

H|P B BH

$ 580,869

$ 87,130

S 668,000

$ 0
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g" Harrington Group

Certified Public Accountants, LLP

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Board of Directors
Youth Homes, Incorporated

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Youth Homes, Incorporated (a nonprofit organization),
which comprise the Statement of Financial Position as of June 30, 2015, and the related Statements of Activities,
Functional Expenses, and Cash Flows for the year then ended and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements .in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the
United States. Those standards require that we plan and petform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free from matetial misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements: The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the
tisks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are approptiate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and approptiate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present faitly, in all material respects, the financial

position of Youth Homes, Incorporated as of June 30, 2015, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

PASADENA SAN FRANCISCO
234 E Colorado Blvd ATrusted Nonprofit Partner 50 Francisco St
Suite M 150 Suite 160
Pasadena, CA 91101 Experience. Service. Respect. ‘ San Francisco, CA 94133
Tel: 626.403.6801 Tel: 415.391.3131

Fax: 626.403.6866 wnpocpas.com Fax:415.391.3233



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
continued

Other Matters
Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements of Youth Homes,
Incorporated as a whole. The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and Non-federal Awards as
required by Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit
Organizations 1s presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements.
Such information is the responsibility of management and was detived from and relates directly to the undeslying
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the undetlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the
information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Summarised Comparative Information

We have previously audited Youth Homes, Incorporated’s 2014 financial statements, and we expressed an
unmodified audit opinion on those audited financial statements in our report dated October 3, 2014. In our
opinion, the summarized comparative information presented hetein as of and for the year ended June 30, 2014, is
consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial statements from which it has been derived.

Other Repotting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated September 30, 2015 on our
consideration of Youth Homes, Incorporated’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The
putpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Awditing Standards in considering Youth Homes, Incorporated’s internal control over financial reporting and
compliance.

a;/mo'ryzéw %/wx%

San Francisco, California
September 30, 2015



YOUTH HOMES, INCORPORATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

June 30, 2015
With comparative totals at June 30, 2014

Temporarily  Permanently

Unrestricted Restricted Restricted 2015 2014
Assets
Cash § 758343 § 112950  § - $ 87293 § 922705
Accounts and grants receivable 622,909 622,909 572,133
Investments (Note 3) 1,688,597 1,688,597 1,617,957
Prepaid expenses 120,348 120,348 123,740
Other asset . 26,286 26,286 8,281
Split-interest agreement (Note 4) 211,774 211,774 239,303
Property and equipment (Note 6) 560,484 560,484 565,595
Total assets § 3,776,967 $ 112,950 $ 211,774 $ 4,101,691 $ 4,049,714
Liabilities and net assets
Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 74,913 $ - $ - $ 74,913 $ 128,358
Accrued liabilities (Note 7) 430,786 430,786 426,179
Deferred rent 79,293 79,293 69,210
Accrued unemployment liability (Note 8) 31,000 ’ 31,000 31,000
Notes payable (Note 10) 540,852 540,852 552,213
Total liabilities 1,156,844 - - 1,156,844 1,206,960
Net assets
Unrestricted 2,620,123 2,620,123 2,460,120
Temporarily restricted (Note 12) 112,950 112,950 143,331
Permanently restricted 211,774 211,774 239,303
Total net assets 2,620,123 112,950 211,774 2,944,847 2,842,754
Total liabilities and net assets $ 3,776,967 § 112,950 $ 211774 $ 4,101,691 $ 4,049,714

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
3
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YOUTH HOMES, INCORPORATED

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the year ended June 30, 2015
With comparative totals for the year ended June 30, 2014

Temporarily Permanently
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted 2015 2014
Revenue and support
Program service fees - government (Note 13) $ 6,235,144 $ - % - $ 6,235,144 5,564,880
Contributions 340,995 95,930 436,925 789,181
Special event, net of benefit to donor of $48,201 134,485 134,485 121,307
In-kind donations (Note 2) 112,821 112,821 100,874
Contributions - auxiliary 51,242 51,242 43,006
Interest income 12,637 12,637 4,817
Other income (loss) (1,731) 1,731) 137,974
Change in value of split-interest agreement (27,529) (27,529) 13,682
Net assets released from program restrictions 126,311 (126,311) - -
Total revenue and support 7,011,904 (30,381) (27,529) 6,953,994 6,775,721
Expenses
Program services 5,622,521 5,622,521 5,075,839
Management and general 979,033 979,033 1,038,042
Fundraising 250,347 250,347 199,373
Total expenses 6,851,901 - - 6,851,901 6,313,254
Change in net assets 160,003 (30,381) (27,529) 102,093 462,467
Net assets, beginning of year as previously reported 2,460,120 143,331 239,303 2,842,754 2,326,910
Prior period adjustment - - - - 53,377
Net assets, beginning of year 2,460,120 143,331 239,303 2,842,754 2,380,287
Net assets, end of year $ 2,620,123 $ 112,950 $ 211,774 $ 2,944,847 2,842,754

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Salaries

Payroll taxes and employee benefits

Total personnel costs

Professional fees

Child related expenses

Rent

Travel

Supplies

In-kind expenses

Repairs and maintenance
Telephone

Insurance

Food

Utilities

Depreciation

Interest expense and bank charges
Printing and office expenses
Dues and subscriptions
Allowances

Basic care

Recruiting

Staff development and training
Miscellaneous

Donations

Postage

Licenses

Property taxes

Advertising and public relations

Total 2015 functional expenses

Total 2014 functional expenses

YOUTH HOMES, INCORPORATED

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
For the year ended June 30, 2015
With comparative totals for the year ended June 30, 2014

Program Management Total Expenses
Services and General Fundraising 2015 2014

$ 3,235,755 $ 404,335 $ 97,790 $ 3,737,880 $ 3,471,405
1,133,074 164,972 35,660 1,333,706 1,214,975
4,368,829 569,307 133,450 5,071,586 4,686,380
187,146 165,026 13,514 365,686 398,830
185,553 185,553 154,312
153,906 21,006 5,218 180,130 171,263
168,615 4,639 221 173,475 137,243
111,516 18,272 1,179 130,967 124,091
41,605 3,700 67,517 112,822 49,154
88,983 13,753 45 102,781 108,730
28,550 70,413 374 99,337 86,001
49,495 38,627 1,615 89,737 78,663
66,494 66,494 65,954
55,608 2,116 103 57,827 59,702
35,553 35,553 35,691
20,512 4,656 3,060 28,228 21,368
43 5,717 17,516 23,276 22,496
21,633 1,406 23,039 19,396
21,700 21,700 20,180
20,375 20,375 8,961
16,404 16,404 16,032
386 14,297 14,683 22,124
200 8,587 8,787 751
7,934 600 8,534 -
2,117 463 4,529 7,109 7,631
5,313 417 5,730 9,755
2,088 2,088 1,619
- 6,927

$ 5,622,521 $ 979,033 $ 250,347 $ 6,851,901
$ 5,075,839 $ 1,038,042 $ 199,373 $ 6,313,254

The accompanying notes ate an integral part of these financial statements.
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YOUTH HOMES, INCORPORATED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended June 30, 2015
With comparative totals for the year ended June 30, 2014

Cash flows from operating activities:
Change in net assets

! Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash
provided by operating activities:

Depreciation
. Change in value of split-interest agreement
! Reinvested interest and dividends

Loss on investment
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

(Increase) decrease in accounts grants and receivable

H Decrease in prepaid expenses

(Increase) in other asset

o (Decrease) increase in accounts payable
Increase in accrued liabilities

Increase in deferred rent
Net cash provided by operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities:
Net (purchase) of investments
Purchase of property and equipment
Net cash (used) by investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities:
Principal payments on notes payable
New borrowings on line of credit
Payments on line of credit
Net cash (used) by financing activities
Net (decrease) increase in cash
Cash, beginning of year

Cash, end of year

Supplemental disclosure:

Operating activities reflect interest paid of:

2015 2014

$ 102,003 462,467
35,553 35,691
27,529 (13,682)
(12,637) (31,492)

8,637 5,267

(50,776) 2,147

3,392 24,171
(18,005) (8,281)

(53,445) 71,481

4,607 56,932

10,083 69,210

57,031 673,911
(66,640) (461,335)
(30,442) (25,087)
(97,082) (486,422)
(11,361) (13,736)

4,362 150
(4,362) (150)
(11,361) (13,736)

(51,412) 173,753

922,705 748,952

$ 871,203 922,705
$ 20,512 18,824

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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YOUTH HOMES, INCORPORATED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Otrganization

Youth Homes, Incorporated (“Youth Homes™) is a not-for-profit organization under the laws of the
State of California. Youth Homes provides a range of setvices to foster care children placed with it
by various governmental agencies.

Youth Homes’ range of services includes the following:

Intensive Residential Treatment: Youth Homes operates four state licensed, six-bed homes in
several cities in central Contra Costa County. Two of the homes are emergency shelters and two are
short-termn treatment programes.

Intensive Treatment Foster Cate:Youth Homes certifies family homes in the community as foster
homes to provide a step-down option from its residential programs and a family setting option for
youth who would benefit from longer-term treatment in a family environment.

Community Based Mental Health Services: Under contract with the Health Services Department,
Youth Homes provides a wide variety of mental health support setvices to severely emotional abused
children and adolescents. These setvices include psychological assessment, individual and group
therapy, family therapy, which occur mostly in its residential facilities.

Therapeutic Behavioral Services: A very sophisticated, preventative program with a highly
specialized team of behavioral coaches who fan out across the county each day to support children.
The children served by this program are at a high tisk of returning to very high level residential
treatment settings or acute care hospitals.

After Care Services: In order to assure permanent homes for foster children who are transitioning
to lower levels of care or independent living, Youth Homes provides an extensive after care program.
This program helps foster children, who are aging out of the system, with mental health counseling,
help with finding employment, assistance with finding a safe place to live, and support with their
individual education goals.

Mentoring Program: A group of special volunteers works one-on-one with a child. The volunteers
give the child an adult friend who is dependable, caring, and committed to their well being. This
program helps the children as they transition to young adults, and well into their future.

Youth Homes receives funding from county and state agencies, with portions of its funding
originating from the federal government. Youth Homes also receives funding from private sources.

Transitional-aged Youth Labor Program: Youth Home now employs between six and eight
former foster care clients in providing light gardening, hauling, and yard work for private pay in the
community.

Transitional-aged Youth Full Service Partnership. Youth Homes provides intensive case

management and therapeutic support for young adults aged 16-25 struggling with serious mental
illness.

continued
7



YOUTH HOMES, INCORPORATED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

A summary of the significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of the accompanying
financial statements is as follows:

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting.

Accounting

To ensure observance of certain constraints and restrictions placed on the use of resources, the
accounts of Youth Homes are maintained in accordance with the principles of net asset accounting.
This is the procedure by which resources for various purposes are classified for accounting and
reporting purposes into net asset classes that are in accordance with specified activities or objectives.
Accordingly, all financial transactions have been recorded and reported by net asset class as follows:

Untestricted. These generally result from revenues generated by receiving unrestricted
contributions, providing services, and receiving interest from investments less expenses incurred
in providing program-related services, raising contributions, and petforming administrative
functions.

Temporarily Restricted. Youth Homes reports gifts of cash and other assets as temporarily
restricted support if they are received with donor stipulations that limit the use of the donated
assets. When a donor restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or the
purpose of the restriction is accomplished, temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to
unrestricted net assets and reported in the Statement of Activities as net assets released from
program or capital restrictions.

Permanently Restricted. These net assets are restricted by donors who stipulate that resources
are to be maintained permanently, but permit Youth Homes to expend all of the income (or
other economic benefits) detived from the donated assets.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are receivables from governmental agencies. Therefore, no allowance for
doubtful accounts has been provided

Investments

Youth Homes values its investments at fair value. Unrealized gains or losses (including investments
bought, sold, and held during the year) are reflected in the Statement of Activities as other income.
Short-term, highly liquid money market deposits that are not used for operations are treated as
investments.

continued
8



YOUTH HOMES, INCORPORATED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued

Fait Value Measurements

Generally accepted accounting principles provide guidance on how fair value should be determined
when financial statement elements are required to be measured at fair value. Valuation techniques are
ranked in three levels depending on the degree of objectivity of the inputs used with each level:

Level 1 inputs — quoted prices in active markets for identical assets
~ Level 2 inputs — quoted prices in active or inactive markets for the same or similar assets
Level 3 inputs — estimates using the best information available when there is little or no market

Youth Homes is requited to measure certain investments, a split-interest agreement, and non-cash
contributions at fair value. The specific techniques used to measure fair value for these financial
statement elements are described in the notes below that relate to each element.

Concentration of Credit Risks

Youth Homes places its temporary cash investments with high-credit, quality financial institutions. At
times, such investments may be in excess of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation insurance
limits. Youth Homes has not incutred losses related to these investments.

The primary receivable balance outstanding at June 30, 2015 consists of government contract
receivables due from county, state, and federal granting agencies. Concentration of credit risks with
respect to trade receivables are limited, as the majority of Youth Homes’ receivables consist of earned
fees from contract programs granted by governmental agencies.

Approximately 89% of total revenue and support generated by Youth Homes as of June 30, 2015 is
detived from government service fees.

Youth Homes holds investments in the form of certificates of deposit, common stock, and money
market funds. The Board of Directors routinely reviews market values of such investments.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost if purchased or at fair value at the date of donation if
donated. Depreciation is computed on the straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the
related assets. Maintenance and repair costs are charged to expense as incurred. Property and
equipment are capitalized if the cost of an asset is greater than or equal to five thousand dollars and
the useful life is greater than two years.

Donated Materials and Services

Contributions of donated non-cash assets are measured on a non-recurring basis and recorded at fair
value in the period received. Contributions of donated services that create or enhance non-financial
assets or that require specialized skills, are provided by individuals possessing those skills, and would
typically need to be purchased if not provided by donation, are recorded at fair value in the period
received. For the year ended June 30, 2015, Youth Homes recorded in-kind contributions of
$112,821 for donated materials and services received.

continued
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YOUTH HOMES, INCORPORATED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued

Income Taxes

Youth Homes is exempt from taxation under Internal Revenue Code Section 501(c)(3) and
California Revenue and Taxation Code Section 23701d.

Generally accepted accounting principles provide accounting and disclosure guidance about positions
taken by an organization in its tax returns that might be uncertain. Management has considered its tax
positions and believes that all of the positions taken by Youth Homes in its federal and state exempt
organization tax returns are more likely than not to be sustained upon examination. Youth Homes’
returns are subject to examination by federal and state taxing authorities, generally for three and four
years, respectively, after they are filed. '

Functional Allocation of Expenses

Costs of providing Youth Homes’ programs and other activities have been presented in the
Statement of Functional Expenses. During the year, such costs are accumulated into separate
groupings as either direct or indirect. Indirect or shared costs are allocated among program and
support services by a method that best measures the relative degree of benefit. Youth Homes uses
salary dollars to allocate indirect costs.

Use of Estimates

'The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues, and expenses as of the date and for the period
presented. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Comparative Totals

The financial statements include certain prior-year summatrized comparative information in total but
not by net asset class. Such information does not include sufficient detail to constitute a presentation
in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
Accordingly, such information should be read in conjunction with.Youth Homes’ financial
statements for the year ended June 30, 2014, from which the summarized information was derived.

Subsequent Events

Management has evaluated subsequent events through September 30, 2015 the date which the
financial statements were available.

continued
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YOUTH HOMES, INCORPORATED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Investments

Significant information about investments at June 30, 2015 is summarized as follows:

Certificates of deposit $1,294,115
Stocks 393,650
Money market funds 832

$1,688,597

Split-Interest Agteement

During 1980, a donor established a trust with a bank, naming Youth Homes as one of the
beneficiaries of a perpetual trust. Under the terms of the split-interest agreement, Youth Homes is to
receive one-third of the annual income, for its unrestricted use, after payment of taxes, trustee fees,
and certain other beneficiary payments until the last named person’s death. At the time of the last
named person’s death, Youth Homes will continue to receive one-third of the annual income, after
payment of taxes and trustee fees, in perpetuity. One-third of the fair value of the trust assets,
$211,774, is reported as a permanently restricted net asset by Youth Homes.

Fair Value Measurements

The table below presents the balances of assets measured at fair value at June 30, 2015 on a recurring
basis:

Level1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Stocks ' $393,650 $ - $ - $393,650
Investment in Marie Cruess
Charitable Remainder Trust
(split-interest agreement) 211,774 211,774
$605,424 3 - b $605,424

The fair value of stocks and the investment in Matie Cruess Charitable Remainder Trust has been
measured on a recurring basis using quoted prices for identical assets in active markets since the
underlying assets of the trust are invested in market traded instruments (Level 1 inputs).

The table below present transactions measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis during the year
ended June 30, 2015:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Contributed services $ - $ 37,548 $ - $ 37,548
Contributed goods 75,273 75,273

$ - $112,821 $ - $112,821

The fair value of contributed services and goods has been measured on a non-recurring basis using
quoted prices for similar assets in inactive markets (Level 2 inputs).

continued
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YOUTH HOMES, INCORPORATED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6. Property and Equipment

Property and equipment at June 30, 2015 consist of the following:

Land $ 306,008
Buildings 425,147
Leasehold improvements 214,240
Vehicles 101,416
1,046,811
Less: accumulated depreciation (486,327)
§ 560,484

In May 1994, Youth Homes acquired Community Development Block Grant funds in the amount of
$80,000 from the Community Development Department of Contra Costa County, for the down
payment on improved real property to be used as a group home. The grant will be converted to debt,
if Youth Homes changes the use of the property. Youth Homes does not intend to change the use of
the property. Pursuant to the grant provisions, Youth Homes delivered to the County a deed of trust
encumbeting the property.

7. Accrued Liabilities

Accrued liabilities at June 30, 2015 consist of the following:

Accrued vacation $239,843
Accrued salaries 163,845
Non-qualified retirement plan liability (Note 14) 26,286
Other accrued liabilities 812
$430,786

8. Accrued Unemployment Liability

Youth Homes has elected to be self-insured for the purposes of California State Unemployment
Insurance. Estimated accrued unemployment liability at June 30, 2015 of $31,000 represents.
estimated future claims arising from payroll paid to June 30, 2015. Unemployment claims for the year
ended June 30, 2015 were $51,493.

9. Line of Credit

Youth Homes has a $75,000 revolving line of credit at a variable rate of interest. There was no
outstanding balance at June 30, 2015.

continued
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YOUTH HOMES, INCORPORATED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

10. Notes Payable
Notes payable at June 30, 2015 consist of the following:

Mortgage payable to a bank, secured by real property
located at 3164 San Ramon Rd., monthly payments of
$2,595, including interest at 3.875%, due November 2037. $222,390

Mortgage payable to a bank, secured by real property
located at 1159 Everett Street, monthly payments of
$1,746, including interest at 3.875%, due December 2033. 221,023

Mortgage payable to a bank, secured by real property
located at 1603 Cherry Lane, monthly payments of $686,
including interest at 3.875%, due August 2034.

97,439
$540,852

Payments for notes payable are as follows:

Year ended June 30,
2016 $ 11,688
2017 12,149
2018 12,629
2019 13,126
2020 13,643
Thereafter 477,617
$540,852
11. Commitments and Contingencies

Obligations Under Operating Leases
Youth Homes leases real property and equipment under operating leases expiting in vatious years.

Future minimum payments, by year and in the aggregate, under these leases with initial or remaining
terms of one year or more, consist of the following:

Year ended June 30,

2016 $165,791
2017 156,983
2018 154,148
2019 155,982
2020 157,548

$790.452

Rent expense under operating leases for the year ended June 30, 2015 was $192,086.

continued
13



YOUTH HOMES, INCORPORATED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

11. Commitments and Contingencies, continued

Contracts

Youth Homes’ grants and contracts are subject to inspection and audit by the appropriate
governmental funding agency. The purpose is to determine whether program funds were used in
accordance with their respective guidelines and regulations. The potential exists for disallowance of
previously-funded program costs. The ultimate liability, if any, which may result from these
governmental audits cannot be reasonably estimated and, accordingly, Youth Homes has no

provisions for the possible disallowance of program costs on its financial statements.

12. Temporarily Restricted Net Assets
Temporarily restricted net assets at June 30, 2015 consist of the following:

Lesher Foundation

William A. Kerr Foundation
Gaedertt Household
Fitedoll

Episcopal Charities

$ 62,500
25,000
10,000

8,935

__ 6,515

$112.950

For the year ended June 30, 2015, net assets released from program restrictions were $126,311.

13. Program Service Fees - Government
Program service fees for the year ended June 30, 2015 consist of the following:

Residential and foster care

C-5 mental health program
Therapeutic behavioral setvices
TAY contract services

Katie A .contract services

14. Non-Qualified Retirement Plan

During the current fiscal year, Youth Homes established a 457(b) tax-deferred compensation plan.
Participation in the plan is limited to the executive director. No employer contributions were made

for the year ended June 30, 2015.

The 457(b) plan is included in other assets and the corresponding liability is included in accrued

liabilities (see Note 7).

14
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YOUTH HOMES, INCORPORATED

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AND NON-FEDERAL AWARDS
For the year ended June 30, 2015

Program
Expenditures
Federal From
Contract CFDA Contract Governmental Revenue Governmental
Program Name Number Number Term Federal Non-federal Revenu
Federal and Non-federal Awards
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services ("DHHS"):
Pass-through, Contra Costa County Department
of Health Secvices - Mental Health Division:
Medical Assistance Program:
C-5 Mental Health Program (a) . 74-322 93.778 7/1/14-6/30/15  $ 1,007,072 1,007,073 $ 2,014,145
Katie A (a) 93.778 7/1/14-6/30/15 62,603 62,604 125,207
Therapeutic Behavioral Services (a) 93.778 7/1/14-6/30/15 507,965 507,966 1,015,931
Mental Health Services for Transitional-aged Youth (a) 24-710 93.778 7/1/14-6/30/15 304,785 304,785 609,570
1,882,425 1,882,428 3,764,853
Pass-through, Contra Costa County Department
of Human Services:
Foster Care - Title IV-E (a) various 93.658 n/a 528,289 1,942,002 2,470,291
Total DHHS 2410,714 3,824,430 6,235,144
Total Federal and Non-federal Awards $ 2,410,714 3,824,430 $ 6,235,144

(a) Audited as a major program

Summary of significant accounting policies:
1. Basis of Accounting - The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and Non-federal Awards has been reported on the accrual basis of accounting.
2. Youth Homes is exempt from income taxation under Internal Revenue Code Section 501(c)(3) and California Revenue Taxation Code Section 23701d.

See independent auditors’ report.
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Independent Auditors’ Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements
Performed in Accordance With Government Auditing Standards

To the Board of Directors
Youth Homes, Incorporated

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the
United States, the financial statements of Youth Homes, Incotporated (“Youth Homes”), which comprise the Statement of
Financial Position as of June 30, 2015, and the related Statements of Activities, Functional Expenses, and Cash Flows for the

year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated September 30,
2015.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Youth Homes’ internal control over financial
reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that ate appropriate in the citcumstances for the purpose of
exptessing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the putpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
Youth Homes’ internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Youth Homes® internal
control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management ot employees, in the
notmal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and cotrect misstatements on a timely basis. A
material weakness is a deficiency, ot a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that thete is a reasonable possibility
that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely
basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combindtion of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material
weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was not
designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these
limitations, during our.audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be matetial weaknesses.
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Youth Homes’ financial statements ate free of material misstatement,
we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements,
. noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts.
However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do
not exptess such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the results of
that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is
an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Anditing Standards in considering Youth Homes’ internal
control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Harvington Ghosp

San Francisco, California
September 30, 2015

PASADENA SAN FRANCISCO
234 E Colorado Bivd ATrusted Nonprofit Partner 50 Francisco St
Suite M150 . Suite 160
Pasadena, CA 91101 Experience. Service. Respect. San Francisco, CA 94133
Tel: 626.403.680| Tel: 415.391.3131

Fax: 626.403.6866 www.npocpas.com Fax: 415.391.3233
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Independent Auditors’ Report on Compliance for Each Major Program
and on Internal Control Over Compliance Requited by OMB Circular A-133

To the Boatd of Directors
Youth Homes, Incorporated

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Progtam

We have audited Youth Homes, Incorporated’s (“Youth Homes”) compliance with the types of compliance
requirements described in the OMB Circlar A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on
each of Youth Homes’ major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2015. Youth Homes’ major federal programs
ate identified in the summary of auditors’ results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to
its federal programs.

Auditots’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Youth Homes’ major federal programs based on
our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and
OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular
A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the
types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal
program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Youth Homes’ compliance with those
requirements and performing such other procedutes as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal program.
However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Youth Homes’ compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Fedetal Progtam

In our opinion, Youth Homes complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred to
“above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30,
2015.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of Youth Homes is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective intetnal control over compliance
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we
considered Youth Homes’ internal control over compliance with the types of requitements that could have a direct and
material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and
teport on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Citrcular A-133, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of Youth Homes’ internal control over compliance.

PASADENA SAN FRANCISCO
234 E Colorado Blvd A Trusted Nonprofit Partner 50 Francisco St
Suite M150 . . Suite 160
Pasadena, CA 91101 Experience. Service. Respect. San Francisco, CA 94133
Tel: 626.403.680! Tek: 415.391.3131

Fax: 626.403.6866 www.npocpas.com Fax: 415.391.3233



Independent Auditors’ Report on Compliance for Each Major Program
and on Internal Conttol Over Compliance Required by OMB Citculat A-133
continued

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of 2 control over compliance does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to ptevent, or detect and
correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requitement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness
in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such
that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requitement of a federal
program will not be prevented, or detected and cortected, on a timely basis. A significant defisiency in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a matetial weakness in internal control over compliance, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited putpose desctibed in the first paragraph of
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in intetnal control over compliance that we
consider to be matetial weaknesses. However, matetial weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to desctibe the scope of our testing of internal
control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requitements of OMB Circular A-133. Accordingly,
this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

%(m'fyzém %M/%

San Francisco, California
September 30, 2015



YOUTH HOMES, INCORPORATED
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
For the year ended June 30, 2015

Section I ~ Summary of Auditors’ Results

Financial Statements:
Type of auditors’ report issued:

Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weakness(es) identified?
Significant deficiencies identified?

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?
Federal Awards:
Internal control over major programs:

Material weakness(es) identified?

Significant deficiencies identified?

Type of auditors’ report issued on compliance for major programs:

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in accordance
with section 510(a) of Circular A-133?

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs:

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?

Identification of Major Programs:
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services:

Foster Care Title IV-E
Medical Assistance Program

Section II — Financial Statements Findings

Unmodified
No
None reported

No

No
None reported

Unmodified

No
$300,000

Yes

93.658
93.778

There are no findings required to be reported in accordance with Generally Accepted Government Auditing

Standards.

Section III - Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

There are neither findings not questioned costs for Federal Awards as defined in OMB Circular A-133.

Section VI — Summary Schedule of Prior Year Findings

None.
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